CITY OF DALTON, GEORGIA



For PROJECT:

PRATER ALLEY STROMWATER DETENTION PROJECT DALTON PROJECT NO. PW-2024-SP-171

CITY OF DALTON PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
PO BOX 1205
DALTON, GEORGIA 30722

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BID

PRATER ALLEY STORMWATER DETENTION PROJECT DALTON PROJECT NO. PW-2024-SP-171

Sealed bids will be received by the City of Dalton Finance Department located at 300 W. Waugh Street, Dalton, Georgia 30720 until:

FRIDAY, APRIL 5, 2024 AT 2:00 PM

for the furnishing of all materials, labor, tools, skill, equipment and incidentals unless noted otherwise for the construction of the project entitled:

PRATER ALLEY STORMWATER DETENTION PROJECT DALTON PROJECT NO. PW-2024-SP-171

at which time and place the sealed bids will be publicly opened and read aloud.

Bids received after the designated time will not be considered.

The principal items of construction include:

The site is 0.96 acres at 310 West Waugh Street adjacent to City Hall in the City of Dalton. The existing structure and parking lot on the site will be demolished by the Owner prior to the start of work. The work includes, but is not limited to, the removal of trees, pond excavation, grading, and installation of a modular retaining wall. Approximately 0.96 acres will be disturbed during construction. The work shall be done as directed by the plans developed by Arcadis-U.S., Inc. All work shall be performed according to the latest Georgia D.O.T. Standards and Specifications.

Bidders shall inform themselves of and comply with all conditions and specifications contained in the bid package, contract, related documents and State and Federal Law.

The bid package, specifications, and contract documents for this project are open to public inspection at the City of Dalton Public Works Department located at 535 Elm Street, Dalton, Georgia 30721. The Public Works Department may be contacted by telephone at (706) 278-7077 or by mail at P.O. Box 1205, Dalton, Georgia 30722.

A <u>Mandatory</u> pre-bid meeting is scheduled for <u>1:00 PM Monday, March 18, 2024</u> to begin at the Public Works Office. Please reserve time to tour the site location. Failure to attend the mandatory pre-bid meeting will result in disqualification of bid.

Any questions pertaining to the bid documents and specifications should be submitted in writing via email by the **questions deadline of 4:00 PM March 21, 2024**. Questions must be directed to Jackson Sheppard at: jsheppard@daltonga.gov.

The City of Dalton will issue responses to questions and any other corrections or amendments it deems necessary in written addenda issued prior to the bids due date. Bidders are advised to check the website for addenda before submitting a bid.

One Contract shall be awarded covering all work, and the contract duration shall be 24 weeks from notice to proceed. Bidders must agree to pay as liquidated damages the sum of \$300.00 per each consecutive calendar day thereafter. Due consideration will be given to delivery of materials in specifying starting date.

Contract documents, plans, and the bid package for this project may be obtained electronically via the City of Dalton's webpage http://www.daltonga.gov/rfps.

The Project "Bidder's List" will consist of the bidders on the sign-in sheet from the mandatory pre-bid meeting.

Bids must be accompanied by a Certified Check or Bid Bond in an amount equal to not less than five percent (5%) of the bid to be considered.

No bid may be withdrawn after the scheduled closing time for receiving bids for a period of sixty (60) days.

The Owner reserves the right to reject any or all bids (and/or alternates) and to waive formalities and re-advertise.

CITY OF DALTON, GEORGIA

J. Jayron

T. Jackson Sheppard, E.I.T. Project Manager

###

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>PAGE</u>
SECTION 0100 – INFORMATION FOR BIDDERS	
RECEIPT AND OPENING OF BIDS	0100-1
PREPARATION OF BID	
ELECTRONIC MAIL MODIFICATION	0100-2
QUALIFICATIONS OF BIDDERS	
BID SECURITY	
LIQUIDATED DAMAGES AND FAILURE TO ENTER INTO CONTRACT	
TIME OF COMPLETION AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES	
CONDITION OF WORK	
ADDENDA AND INTERPRETATIONS	0100-3
SECURITY FOR FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE	
POWER OF ATTORNEY	
NOTICE OF SPECIAL CONDITIONS	
LAWS AND REGULATIONS	
METHOD OF AWARD	0100-4
OBLIGATION OF BIDDER	0100-5
CORRELATION AND INTENT OF DOCUMENTS	0100-5
CLAIMS	0100-5
ORDER OF WORK	
SUBCONTRACTS	
TIMELY EXECUTION	0100-6
SECTION 0200 – BID PROPOSAL	
BID BOND	
BID PROPOSAL	
CONSTRUCTION PAYMENT BOND	
CONSTRUCTION PERFORMANCE BOND	
CONTRACT	
E-VERIFY AFFIDAVIT	0200-18
SECTION 0300 – GENERAL CONDITIONS	
CONTRACT AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS	0300-1
DEFINITIONS	
Contractor	
Contract	0300-1



<u> </u>	<u>PAGE</u>
Project Representative	0300-1
Owner	
Subcontractor	0300-1
Work on (at) the Project	0300-1
CORRELATION AND INTENT OF DOCUMENTS	0300-1
MATERIALS, SERVICES AND FACILITIES	0300-2
CONTRACTOR'S TITLE TO MATERIALS	
MATERIALS FURNISHED BY THE CONTRACTOR	
INSPECTION AND TESTING OF MATERIALS	
PATENTS	
SURVEYS, PERMITS AND REGULATIONS	
CONTRACTOR'S OBLIGATIONS	
CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY	
WEATHER CONDITIONS	
SAFETY PROVISIONS	
SANITARY PROVISIONS	
PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND SAFETY	
PROTECTION OF WORK AND PROPERTY – EMERGENCY	
INSPECTION	
REPORTS, RECORDS AND DATA	
SUPERINTENDENCE BY CONTRACTOR	
COMPETENT LABOR	
CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT	
CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE	
CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE	
CHANGE OF THE CONTRACT TIME	
CORRECTION OF WORK	
SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS FOUND DIFFERENT	
CLAIMS FOR EXTRA WORK	
RIGHT OF THE OWNER TO TERMINATE CONTRACT	
CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE AND PERIODIC ESTIMATES	
PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTORS	
ACCEPTANCE AND FINAL PAYMENT	
PAYMENTS BY CONTRACTORS	
CONTRACTOR'S AND SUBCONTRACTOR'S INSURANCE	
CONTRACT SECURITY	
ADDITIONAL OR SUBSTITUTE BOND	300-21



	<u>PAGE</u>
LIEN	0300-21
ASSIGNMENTS	0300-22
MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITY OF CONTRACTORS	0300-22
COORDINATION WITH OTHER CONTRACTORS	0300-22
SUBCONTRACTING	
USE OF PREMISES AND REMOVAL OF DEBRIS	0300-23
QUANTITIES OF ESTIMATE	0300-24
RIGHTS-OF-WAY AND SUSPENSION OF WORK	0300-24
GUARANTY	0300-24
CONFLICTING CONDITIONS	
NOTICE AND SERVICE THEREOF	
PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY LAW DEEMED INSERTED	0300-25
SUSPENSION OF WORK	
PROTECTION AND RESTORATION OF PROPERTY	
RESPONSIBILITY FOR DAMAGE CLAIMS	
INTEREST OF FEDERAL, STATE OR LOCAL OFFICIALS	
OTHER PROHIBITED INTERESTS	
USE OF CHEMICALS	
MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC	
ACCEPTANCE OF FINAL PAYMENT CONSTITUTES RELEASE	
OWNER'S RIGHT TO SUSPEND WORK	
TIME FOR COMPLETION AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES	
AFFIDAVIT FOR FINAL PAYMENT AND RELEASE OF LIENS FORM	0300-30
SECTION 0400 – GENERAL NOTES	
EXHIBIT A – ARCADIS U.S., INC. SITE DEVELOPMENT PLANS DATED 2023	DECEMBER



SECTION 0100 - INFORMATION FOR BIDDERS

0101 RECEIPT AND OPENING OF BIDS

The <u>CITY OF DALTON</u>, <u>GEORGIA</u> (hereinafter called the Owner), invites bids on the form attached hereto, all blanks of which must be appropriately filled in. Bids will be received by the Owner at the <u>CITY OF DALTON FINANCE DEPARTMENT</u> 300 W. WAUGH STREET, <u>DALTON</u>, <u>GEORGIA 30720</u> until <u>APRIL 5TH</u>, 2024 AT 2:00 PM and then at said office publicly opened and read aloud. The envelope containing the bids must be sealed and designated as the bid for the construction of the project entitled:

PRATER ALLEY STORMWATER DETENTION PROJECT DALTON PROJECT NO. PW-2024-SP-171

The Owner may consider informal any bid not prepared and submitted in accordance with the provisions hereof and may waive any informalities to reject any and all bids. Any bid may be withdrawn prior to the above scheduled time for opening of bids or authorized postponement thereof. Any bid received after the time and date specified shall not be considered. No bidder may withdraw a bid within 60 days after the actual date of the opening thereof.

0102 PREPARATION OF BID

Each bid must be submitted on the prescribed form. All blank spaces for bid prices must be filled in, in ink or typewritten, in numerals for unit prices and for total amounts.

Each bid must be submitted in a sealed envelope bearing on the outside the name of the bidder, his address, and the name of the project for which the bid is submitted. In accordance with State Law (O.C.G.A 13-10-91 & 50-36), <u>ALL SEALED BIDS MUST INCLUDE AN EXECUTED E-VERIFY AFFIDAVIT</u>, THIS DOCUMENT CAN BE FOUND IN THE BID PROPOSAL SECTION. If forwarded by mail, the sealed envelope containing the bid must be enclosed in another envelope addressed as specified in the bid form. Any bid which is not properly prepared and accompanied by required certifications may be rejected by the Owner.



Each bidder will be required to certify compliance with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (IRCA), D.L. 99-603 and the Georgia Security and Immigration Compliance Act O.C.G.A. §13-10-90 et seq. by doing the following: registering at https://www.uscis.gov/e-verify to verify information of all newly hired employees in order to comply with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (IRCA), D.L. 99-603 and the Georgia Security and Immigration Compliance Act. Each firm must submit a completed and notarized E-verify (Exhibit A) affidavit with their bid submittal. During the entire duration of this contract, Contractor and all subcontractors must remain in compliance with Georgia Security and Immigration Compliance Act of 2007 and Georgia code §13-10-91 and §50-36-1.

0103 ELECTRONIC MAIL MODIFICATION

Any bidder may modify his bid by written electronic communication at any time prior to the scheduled closing time for receipt of bids, provided such communication is received by the Owner prior to the closing time, and, provided further, the Owner is satisfied that a written confirmation of the electronic modification over the signature of the bidder was mailed prior to the closing time. If written confirmation is not received within two days from the closing time, no consideration will be given to the electronically mailed modification.

0104 QUALIFICATIONS OF BIDDERS

The Owner may make such investigations as he deems necessary to determine the ability of the bidder to perform the work, and the bidder shall furnish to the Owner all such information and data for this purpose as the Owner may request. By submission of his Bid, the Bidder acknowledges the right of the Owner to make such investigations, to contact references and utilize this information as a basis of determining award of the contract. The Owner reserves the right to reject any bid if the evidence submitted by, or investigation of, such bidder fails to satisfy the Owner that such bidder is properly qualified to carry out the obligations of the contract and to complete the work contemplated therein. Conditional bids will not be accepted.

Written information pertaining to the Bidder's qualifications may be requested by the Owner. Failure of the Bidder to provide such information within fifteen days of notification will be grounds for disqualification.

0105 BID SECURITY

Each bid must be accompanied by a certified check or bid bond prepared on the form of bid bond attached hereto, duly executed by the bidder as principal and having as surety thereon a surety company approved by the Owner, in the amount of five (5)% of the bid. Such certified checks or bid bonds will be returned to all except the three lowest bidders within three days after the opening of bids, and the remaining certified checks or bid bonds will be returned promptly after the Owner



and the accepted bidder have executed the contracts, or, if no award has been made within 60 days after the date of the opening of bids, upon demand of the bidder at any time thereafter, so long as he has not been notified of the acceptance of his bid.

0106 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES AND FAILURE TO ENTER INTO CONTRACT

The successful bidder, upon his failure or refusal to execute and deliver the contract and bonds required within 10 days after he has received notice of the acceptance of his bid, shall forfeit to the Owner, as liquidated damages for such failure or refusal, the security (bid bond) deposited with his bid.

0107 TIME OF COMPLETION AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

Bidder must agree to commence work on or before a date to be specified in a written "Notice to Proceed" of the Owner and to fully complete the project within 24 weeks following "Notice to Proceed". Bidders must agree also to pay as liquidated damages the sum of \$300.00 per each consecutive calendar day thereafter. Anticipated "Notice to Proceed" date is tentatively set for April 22, 2024.

0108 CONDITION OF WORK

Each bidder must inform himself fully of the conditions relating to the construction of the project and the employment of labor thereon. Failure to do so will not relieve a successful bidder of his obligation to furnish all material and labor necessary to carry out the provisions of his contract. Insofar as possible the Contractor, in carrying out his work, must employ such methods or means as will not cause any interruption of or interference with the work of any other contractor.

0109 ADDENDA AND INTERPRETATIONS

Oral interpretations of the meaning of plans, specifications or other contract documents shall not be binding over written material.

Every request for such interpretation should be in writing addressed to <u>City of Dalton Public Works</u>, P.O. Box 1205, <u>Dalton</u>, <u>Georgia 30722 or by email to Jackson Sheppard (jsheppard@daltonga.gov)</u> and to be given consideration must be received by the question's deadline of 2:00 PM March 21, 2024. Any and all such interpretations and any supplemental instructions will be in the form of written addenda to the specifications, which, will be emailed to all prospective bidders. Failure of any bidder to receive any such addendum or interpretations shall not relieve such bidder from any obligation under his bid as submitted. All addenda so issued shall become part of the contract documents.



0110 SECURITY FOR FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE

Simultaneously with his delivery of the executed contract, the Contractor shall furnish a surety bond or bonds as security for faithful performance of his contract and for the payment of all persons performing labor on the project under this contract, and furnishing materials in connection with his contract, as specified in the General Conditions included herein. Surety companies executing Bonds must appear on the Treasury Department's most current list (Circular 570 as amended) and be authorized to transact business in the state where the project is located.

0111 POWER OF ATTORNEY

Attorneys-in-fact who sign bid bonds or contract bonds must file with each bond a certified and effectively dated copy of their power of attorney.

0112 NOTICE OF SPECIAL CONDITIONS

Attention is particularly called to those parts of the contract documents and specifications which are identified subsequently under Special Conditions.

0113 LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The bidders' attention is directed to the fact that all applicable federal and state laws, municipal ordinances, and the rules and regulations of all authorities having jurisdiction over construction of the project shall apply to the contract throughout, and they will be deemed to be included in the contract the same as though herein written out in full.

0114 METHOD OF AWARD

If the Contract is awarded, it will be awarded to the lowest Bidder whose evaluation by Owner indicates to Owner that the award will be in the best interests of the project. The Owner shall have complete discretion in making this determination and may consider factors such as, but not limited to the following:

- 0114.01 Unit bid prices of various items as they relate to total bid price.
- O114.02 Proximity of the Bidder's permanent place of business as it may relate to Bidder's responsiveness in carrying out the contract.
- 0114.03 Litigation record of the Bidder.
- 0114.04 Satisfactory completion of similar projects.



- 0114.05 Resources pertaining to management, personnel and equipment.
- 0114.06 Financial history, credit rating and current resources.

0115 OBLIGATION OF BIDDER

At the time of the opening of bids, each bidder will be presumed to have inspected the site and to have read and to be thoroughly familiar with the plans and contract documents (including all addenda). The failure or omission of any bidder to examine any form, instrument, or document shall in no way relieve any bidder from any obligation in respect to his bid.

0116 CORRELATION AND INTENT OF DOCUMENTS

The contract documents are complementary, and what is called for by one shall be as binding as if called for by all.

The intent of the documents is to describe in detail all construction entailed in this project. The contractor will furnish all labor, materials, equipment, transportation, tools and appurtenances such as may be reasonably required under the terms of the contract to make each part of the work complete.

The drawings are intended to conform and agree with the specifications. If, however, discrepancies occur, the Owners will decide which shall govern. Special specifications stated on the drawings govern that particular piece of construction and have equal weight and importance as the printed specifications. In the event of any discrepancies between the drawings and the figures written thereon, the figures are to be taken as correct.

0117 CLAIMS

The Owner reserves the right to refuse to issue any voucher and to direct that no payment shall be made the contractor in the case they have reason to believe that said contractor has neglected or failed to pay any subcontractor, material dealer, worker or employee for work performed on or about the project including work as set forth in these specifications, until the Owner is satisfied that such subcontractors, material dealers, worker, or employees have been fully paid. However this provision shall not obligate the Owner to intervene in any claim.

0118 ORDER OF WORK

The work shall be started at such points as the Owner shall designate and shall be prosecuted in the order he directs. This applies to both location and items of construction.

0119 SUBCONTRACTS



If required by the Owner, the apparent Successful Bidder, and any other Bidder so requested, will within seven days after the day of the Bid opening submit to Owner a list of all Subcontractors and other persons and organizations (including those who are to furnish the principal items of material and equipment) proposed for those portions of the Work as to which such identification is so required. If the Owner, after due investigation, has reasonable objection to any proposed Subcontractor, other person or organization, may, before giving the Notice of Award, request the apparent Successful Bidder to submit an acceptable substitute without an increase in Bid price. If the apparent Successful Bidder declines to make any such substitution, the contract shall not be awarded to such Bidder, but his declining to make any such substitution will not constitute grounds for sacrificing his Bid Security. Any Subcontractor, other person or organization so listed and to whom the Owner does not make written objection prior to the giving of the Notice of Award will be deemed acceptable to Owner.

0120 TIMELY EXECUTION

When the Owner gives a Notice of Award to the Successful Bidder, it will be accompanied by at least five unsigned counterparts of the Agreement and all other Contract Documents. Within ten days thereafter, the Contractor shall sign and deliver at least five counterparts of the Agreement to Owner with all other Contract Documents attached. Thereafter, the Owner will deliver two fully signed counterparts to Contractor.

END OF SECTION



AIA Document 310 - 2010 Bid Bond

CONTRACTOR (Name, legal status and address):	SURETY (Name, legal status and principal place of business):
Summers-Taylor, Inc.	Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland
P.O. Box 1628	1299 Zurich Way
Elizabethton, TN 37644	Schaumburg, IL 60196
OWNER (Name, legal status and address):	
CITY OF DALTON FINANCE DEPT.	
300 W. WAUGH STREET	
DALTON, GA 30720	
Bond Amount: FIVE (5%) PERCENT OF BID	
PROJECT: (Name, location or address, and Project number,	if any):
PRATER ALLEY STORMWATER DETENTION DALTON PROJECT NO. PW-2024-SP-171	PROJECT
of this Bond are such that if the Owner accepts the bid of the Continue period as may be agreed to by the Owner and Contractor, an accordance with the terms of such bid, and gives such bond or bon surety admitted in the jurisdiction of the Project and otherwise acceptor the prompt payment of labor and material furnished in the prosent the amount of this Bond, between the amount specified in said to bentract with enother party to perform the work covered by said by builf force and effect. The Surety hereby waives any notice of an which the Owner may accept the bid. Waiver of notice by the Suregregate beyond the time for acceptance of bids specified in the beconsent for an extension beyond sixty (60) days. If this Bond is issued in connection with a subcontractor's bid to a subcontractor and the term Owner shall be deemed by the Contractor when this Bond has been furnished to comply with a statutory or or his Bond conflicting with said statutory or legal requirement shall be deemed incorporated on the statutory or other legal requirement shall be deemed incorporated on struck as a statutory bond and not as a common law bond. Signed and sealed this 5THday of APRIL , 202	other legal requirement in the location of the Project, any provision in all be deemed deleted herefrom and provisions conforming to such d herein. When so furnished, the intent is that this Bond shall be Summers-Taylor, Inc.
Sha Ben (Scal)	(Principal) (Title), LEE HAMRICK, VICE-PRESIDENT Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland
(Scal)	(Surety) Ret a. Ril
	(Title) Robert A. Davidson
	Attorney-in-Fact

Language conforms to AIA Document A310 Bid Bond BID70001ZZ0311f

ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY, a corporation of the State of New York, the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY, a corporation of the State of Illinois, and the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND a corporation of the State of Illinois (herein collectively called the "Companies"), by Robert D. Murray, Vice President, in pursuance of authority granted by Article V, Section 8, of the By-Laws of said Companies, which are set forth on the reverse side hereof and are hereby certified to be in full force and effect on the date hereof, do hereby nominate, constitute, and appoint Robert A. DAVIDSON and Stephen A. BENSON, of Nashville, Tennessee, its true and lawful agent and Attorney-in-Fact, to make, execute, seal and deliver, for, and on its behalf as surety, and as its act and deed: any and all bonds and undertakings, and the execution of such bonds or undertakings in pursuance of these presents, shall be as binding upon said Companies, as fully and amply, to all intents and purposes, as if they had been duly executed and acknowledged by the regularly elected officers of the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY at its office in New York, New York., the regularly elected officers of the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT

COMPANY OF MARYLAND at its office in Owings Mills, Maryland., in their own proper persons.

The said Vice President does hereby certify that the extract set forth on the reverse side hereof is a true copy of Article V, Section 8, of the By-Laws of said Companies, and is now in force.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Vice-President has hereunto subscribed his/her names and affixed the Corporate Seals of the said ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY, COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY, and FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, this 8th day of February, A.D. 2024.

ATTEST: ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND







By: Robert D. Murray Vice President

aun & Brown

By: Dawn E. Brown
Secretary

State of Maryland County of Baltimore

On this 8th day of February, A.D. 2024, before the subscriber, a Notary Public of the State of Maryland, duly commissioned and qualified, Robert D. Murray, Vice President and Dawn E. Brown, Secretary of the Companies, to me personally known to be the individuals and officers described in and who executed the preceding instrument, and acknowledged the execution of same, and being by me duly sworn, deposeth and saith, that he/she is the said officer of the Company aforesaid, and that the seals affixed to the preceding instrument are the Corporate Seals of said Companies, and that the said Corporate Seals and the signature as such officer were duly affixed and subscribed to the said instrument by the authority and direction of the said Corporations.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Official Seal the day and year first above written.

Genevieve M. Maison

GENEVIEVE M. MAISON
NOTARY PUBLIC
BALTIMORE COUNTY, MD
My Commission Expires JANUARY 27, 2025



SECTION 0200 - BID PROPOSAL

BID BOND (Five Percent of Bid)

of the City of _____ State of ____ and County of ____ as Principal and ____ as Surety, are hereby held and firmly bound unto the CITY OF DALTON, GEORGIA as Owner in the penal sum of _____) for the payment of which, well and truly to be made, we hereby jointly and severally bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns.

Signed this _____ day of _____, _____.

The condition of the above obligation is such that whereas the Principal has submitted to the CITY OF DALTON, GEORGIA a certain bid attached hereto and hereby made a part hereof to enter into a contract in writing for the construction of the project entitled:

PRATER ALLEY STORMWATER DETENTION PROJECT DALTON PROJECT NO. PW-2024-SP-171

NOW, THEREFORE,

- (a) If said bid shall be rejected or in the alternate,
- (b) If said bid shall be accepted and the Principal shall execute and deliver a contract in the Form of Contract attached hereto (properly completed in accordance with said bid) and shall furnish a bond for his faithful performance of



BID BOND (Continued)

said contract and for the payment of all persons performing labor or furnishing materials in connection therewith, and shall in all other respects perform the agreement created by the acceptance of said bid, then this obligation shall be void; otherwise the same shall remain in force and effect; it being expressly understood and agreed that the liability of the surety for any and all claims hereunder shall, in no event, exceed the penal amount of this obligation as herein stated.

The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that the obligations of said Surety and its bond shall be in no way impaired or affected by any extension of the time within which the Owner may accept such Bids, and said Surety does hereby waive notice of any such extension.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Principal and the Surety have hereunto set their hands and seals, and such of them as are corporations have caused their corporate seals to be hereto affixed and these presents to be signed by their proper officers, the day and year first set forth above.

Witness As To Principal	- Principal	
	Ву	SEAL
Witness As To Surety	Surety	
	Address	
	By Attorney-in-Fact	SEAL



BID PROPOSAL

	Place DALTON, GA Date 4/5/2024
Proposal of Summers Taylor, Inc.	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
"Bidder") a contractor organized and existing under the laws	of the City of <u>Johnson Cit</u>
State of and County of Washingt	on, * an individual, a
corporation, or a partnership doing business assumme	rs Taylor, Inc.
TO: CITY OF DALTON, GEORGIA (Hereinafter called "Owner")	
Gentlemen:	
The Bidder in compliance with your invitation for bids for the calley STORMWATER DETENTION PROJECT (DALTON SP-171) having examined the plans and specifications with site of the proposed work, and being familiar with all of the construction of the proposed project, including the available hereby proposes to furnish all labor, materials, and supplies, in accordance with the contract documents, within the time prices stated below. These prices are to cover all expenses work required under this contract, of which this proposal is a	PROJECT NO. PW-2024- related documents and the conditions surrounding the ility of materials and labor, and to construct the project set forth herein, and at the incurred in performing the
Bidder hereby agrees to commence work under this contract specified in a written "Notice to Proceed" of the Owner and the within 24 weeks following "Notice to Proceed". Bidder further damages the sum of \$300.00 for each consecutive calendar of provided in the General Conditions under "Time of Completion".	o fully complete the project agrees to pay as liquidated day thereafter as hereinafter
Bidder acknowledges receipt of the following addenda: Addendum (3/22/2024)	
*Strike out inapplicable terms	-



BID PROPOSAL (Continued)

Amount shall be shown in figures.

The prices submitted shall include all labor, materials, removal, overhead, profit, insurance, etc., to cover the finished work of the several kinds called for.

Bidder understands that the Owner reserves the right to reject any or all bids and to waive any informalities in the bidding.

The Bidder agrees that this bid shall be good and may not be withdrawn for a period of 60 calendar days after the scheduled closing time for receiving bids.

The undersigned further agrees that, in case of failure on his part to execute said contract and bond within ten (10) days after the award thereof, the check or bond accompanying his bid and the money payable thereon shall become the property of the Owner; otherwise, the check or bond accompanying this proposal shall be returned to the Bidder.

The Bidder declares that he understands that the quantities shown on the proposal are subject to adjustment by either increase or decrease, and that should the quantities of any of the items of work be increased, the undersigned proposes to do the additional work at the unit prices stated herein; and should the quantities be decreased, he also understands that payment will be made on actual quantities at the unit price bid and will make no claim for anticipated profits for any decrease in the quantities and that actual quantities will be determined upon completion of work, at which time adjustment will be made to the contract amount by direct increase or decrease.

Attached hereto is a bid bond or certified check on the 5th Day of April, 2024 in the amount of Five (5%) fercent of Bid according to conditions under "Information for Bidders" and the provisions therein.

The full name and residence of persons or parties interested in the foregoing bids, as principals, are named as follows:

Summers Taylor, Inc.	
600 Sevier Street	
Johnson City, TN 37604	



BID PROPOSAL (Continued)

Dated at:

City of Dalton, GA (Z:00 PM)

The 5th day of April , 2024

SEAL

DALTON PROJECT NO. PW-2024-SP-171 PRATER ALLEY STORMWATER DETENTION PROJECT REVISED BID FORM

ITEM	DESCRIPTION	UNITS	QNTY	UNIT PRICE	TOTAL
ENERAL					
1	GENERAL CONDITIONS	LS	1	\$62,000,00	\$62,000.
2	PAYMENT & PERFORMANCE BONDING	LS	1	\$1.00	#1.0
3	CONSTRUCTION STAKING AND AS BUILT SURVEY	LS	1	\$24,400.00	# Z4, 400. C
4	OWNER-DIRECTED WORK	IS	1		\$ 20,000.0
	OWNER-BIRECTED WORK	LJ		SUBTOTAL	\$106,401.0
DEMOLIT	TION AND EARTHWORK				1001101.0
5	CONCRETE SIDEWALK REMOVAL	SY	277	\$23.00	#6,371.00
6	CURB & GUTTER REMOVAL	LF	146	\$23.50	\$3,431.00
7	ABANDON RCP IN PLACE	LF	35	\$120.00	\$4,200.00
8	48" RCP REMOVAL	LF	143	\$80.00	\$11,440.00
	GRADING COMPLETE (INCL. DEWATERING OF EXCAVATION IF				III . I . I . I
9	NEEDED)	LS	1	\$240,625.00	#240, 625,0
				SUBTOTAL	#266,067.0
OND AN	ND DRAINAGE SYSTEM				F MUD,007. D
10	RETAINING WALL (INCL. SELECT BACKFILL IF NEEDED)	LS	1	1450,000.00	#450,000.00
11	HEADWALL (GDOT 1125)	EA	2	\$3,615.00	\$7,230.00
12	24" CLASS III RCP	LF	19	1350.00	46,650.00
	12.1 02.00 111101			SUBTOTAL	\$465,880.
ITE REST	TORATION				142/000.
13	CONCRETE SIDEWALK	SY	145	#170.00	#24,650.00
14	ORNAMENTAL FENCE	LF	900	#122.50	\$110,250.00
15	MAINTENANCE ACCESS GATE	EA	1	\$3,650.00	\$3,650.00
	INAINTENANCE ACCESS GATE	<u>C</u> A		SUBTOTAL	\$138,550.00
ROSION	CONTROL				
16	[RIPRAP (INSTALLED)	SY	250	#5B.00	\$14.500.0
16 17	RIPRAP (INSTALLED) VEGETATED EMERGENCY SPILLWAY - TOPSOIL	SY SY	250 275	\$58.00 \$29.50	
	VEGETATED EMERGENCY SPILLWAY - TOPSOIL			#29.50	\$ 8,112.50
17		SY	275	#29.50	\$ 8,112.50
17 18	VEGETATED EMERGENCY SPILLWAY - TOPSOIL VEGETATED EMERGENCY SPILLWAY - EROSION CONTROL BLANKET	SY SY	275 275	#29.50 #10.00 \$0.75	\$ 8,112.50 \$ 2,750.00 \$ 3,307.50
17 18 19	VEGETATED EMERGENCY SPILLWAY - TOPSOIL VEGETATED EMERGENCY SPILLWAY - EROSION CONTROL BLANKET TEMPORARY GRASS SEEDING	SY SY SY	275 275 4410	#29.50 #10.00 \$0.75 \$2.00	\$ 8,112.50 \$ 2,750.00 \$ 3,307.50 \$5,120.00
17 18 19 20	VEGETATED EMERGENCY SPILLWAY - TOPSOIL VEGETATED EMERGENCY SPILLWAY - EROSION CONTROL BLANKET TEMPORARY GRASS SEEDING TURF GRASS SEEDING	SY SY SY	275 275 4410 2560	#29.50 #10.00 \$0.75 \$2.00 #9.00	\$ 8,112.50 \$ 2,750.00 \$ 3,307.50 \$5,120.00 \$16,650.0
17 18 19 20 21 22	VEGETATED EMERGENCY SPILLWAY - TOPSOIL VEGETATED EMERGENCY SPILLWAY - EROSION CONTROL BLANKET TEMPORARY GRASS SEEDING TURF GRASS SEEDING BERMUDA SOD	SY SY SY SY	275 275 4410 2560 1,850	#29.50 #10.00 #0.75 #2.00 #9.00	#14,500.0 # 8,112.50 # 2,750.00 # 3,307.50 #5,120.00 # 16,450.00
17 18 19 20 21	VEGETATED EMERGENCY SPILLWAY - TOPSOIL VEGETATED EMERGENCY SPILLWAY - EROSION CONTROL BLANKET TEMPORARY GRASS SEEDING TURF GRASS SEEDING BERMUDA SOD SILT FENCE	SY SY SY SY SY LF	275 275 4410 2560 1,850 1,400	#29.50 #10.00 #0.75 #2.00 #9.00 #6.00	\$ 8,112.50 \$ 2,750.00 \$ 3,307.50 \$5,120.00 \$ 1,400.00 \$ 1,200.00
17 18 19 20 21 22 23	VEGETATED EMERGENCY SPILLWAY - TOPSOIL VEGETATED EMERGENCY SPILLWAY - EROSION CONTROL BLANKET TEMPORARY GRASS SEEDING TURF GRASS SEEDING BERMUDA SOD SILT FENCE FILTER RING CONSTRUCTION EXIT	SY SY SY SY LF EA	275 275 4410 2560 1,850 1,400 2	#29.50 #10.00 #0.75 #2.00 #9.00 #6.00 #600.00	\$ 8,112.50 \$ 2,750.00 \$ 3,307.50 \$ 5,120.00 \$ 1,450.00 \$ 1,200.00 \$ 7,650.00
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24	VEGETATED EMERGENCY SPILLWAY - TOPSOIL VEGETATED EMERGENCY SPILLWAY - EROSION CONTROL BLANKET TEMPORARY GRASS SEEDING TURF GRASS SEEDING BERMUDA SOD SILT FENCE FILTER RING	SY SY SY SY LF EA EA	275 275 4410 2560 1,850 1,400 2	#29.50 #10.00 #0.75 #2.00 #9.00 #6.00 #600.00 #7,650.00	\$ 8,112.50 \$ 2,750.00 \$ 3,307.50 \$5,120.00 \$ 1,400.00 \$ 1,400.00
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25	VEGETATED EMERGENCY SPILLWAY - TOPSOIL VEGETATED EMERGENCY SPILLWAY - EROSION CONTROL BLANKET TEMPORARY GRASS SEEDING TURF GRASS SEEDING BERMUDA SOD SILT FENCE FILTER RING CONSTRUCTION EXIT CURB INLET PROTECTION	SY SY SY SY LF EA EA	275 275 4410 2560 1,850 1,400 2 1	#29.50 #10.00 #0.75 #2.00 #9.00 #6.00 #600.00 #7,650.00	\$ 8,112.50 \$ 2,750.00 \$ 3,307.50 \$ 5,120.00 \$ 8,400.00 \$ 1,200.00 \$ 1,400.00 \$ 1,400.00
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26	VEGETATED EMERGENCY SPILLWAY - TOPSOIL VEGETATED EMERGENCY SPILLWAY - EROSION CONTROL BLANKET TEMPORARY GRASS SEEDING TURF GRASS SEEDING BERMUDA SOD SILT FENCE FILTER RING CONSTRUCTION EXIT CURB INLET PROTECTION TEMPORARY PUMP & FILTER BAG	SY SY SY SY LF EA EA EA	275 275 4410 2560 1,850 1,400 2 1 1	#29.50 #10.00 #0.75 #2.00 #9.00 #6.00 #600.00 #7,650.00	\$ 8,112.50 \$ 2,750.00 \$ 3,307.50 \$ 5,120.00 \$ 8,400.00 \$ 1,200.00 \$ 1,400.00 \$ 10,500.00
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27	VEGETATED EMERGENCY SPILLWAY - TOPSOIL VEGETATED EMERGENCY SPILLWAY - EROSION CONTROL BLANKET TEMPORARY GRASS SEEDING TURF GRASS SEEDING BERMUDA SOD SILT FENCE FILTER RING CONSTRUCTION EXIT CURB INLET PROTECTION TEMPORARY PUMP & FILTER BAG	SY SY SY SY LF EA EA EA	275 275 4410 2560 1,850 1,400 2 1 1	#29.50 #10.00 #0.75 #2.00 #9.00 #6.00 #600.00 #7,650.00 #10,500.00	\$ 8,112.50 \$ 2,750.00 \$ 3,307.50 \$ 5,120.00 \$ 8,400.00 \$ 1,200.00 \$ 1,400.00 \$ 10,500.00
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27	VEGETATED EMERGENCY SPILLWAY - TOPSOIL VEGETATED EMERGENCY SPILLWAY - EROSION CONTROL BLANKET TEMPORARY GRASS SEEDING TURF GRASS SEEDING BERMUDA SOD SILT FENCE FILTER RING CONSTRUCTION EXIT CURB INLET PROTECTION TEMPORARY PUMP & FILTER BAG TEMPORARY STORMWATER BYPASS SYSTEM	SY SY SY SY LF EA EA EA	275 275 4410 2560 1,850 1,400 2 1 1	#29.50 #10.00 #0.75 #2.00 #9.00 #6.00 #6.00 #7,650.00 #10,500.00 #10,500.00	\$ 8,112.50 \$ 2,750.00 \$ 3,307.50 \$ 5,120.00 \$ 1,400.00 \$ 1,400.00 \$ 1,400.00 \$ 10,500.00 \$ 10,000.00
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27	VEGETATED EMERGENCY SPILLWAY - TOPSOIL VEGETATED EMERGENCY SPILLWAY - EROSION CONTROL BLANKET TEMPORARY GRASS SEEDING TURF GRASS SEEDING BERMUDA SOD SILT FENCE FILTER RING CONSTRUCTION EXIT CURB INLET PROTECTION TEMPORARY PUMP & FILTER BAG TEMPORARY STORMWATER BYPASS SYSTEM ANEOUS TRAFFIC CONTROL	SY SY SY SY LF EA EA LS	275 275 4410 2560 1,850 1,400 2 1 1	#29.50 #10.00 #0.75 #2.00 #9.00 #6.00 #6.00 #7,650.00 #10,500.00 \$10,500.00 \$10,000.00	\$ 8,112.50 \$ 2,750.00 \$ 3,307.50 \$ 5,120.00 \$ 1,400.00 \$ 1,400.00 \$ 10,500.00 \$ 10,000.00 \$ 10,200.00
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27	VEGETATED EMERGENCY SPILLWAY - TOPSOIL VEGETATED EMERGENCY SPILLWAY - EROSION CONTROL BLANKET TEMPORARY GRASS SEEDING TURF GRASS SEEDING BERMUDA SOD SILT FENCE FILTER RING CONSTRUCTION EXIT CURB INLET PROTECTION TEMPORARY PUMP & FILTER BAG TEMPORARY STORMWATER BYPASS SYSTEM ANEOUS TRAFFIC CONTROL UTILITY CONFLICTS & TEMPORARY SERVICE	SY SY SY SY SY LF EA EA EA LS	275 275 4410 2560 1,850 1,400 2 1 1 1	#29.50 #10.00 #0.75 #2.00 #9.00 #6.00 #6.00 #7,650.00 #10,500.00 #10,500.00 \$10,000.00	\$ 8,112.50 \$ 2,750.00 \$ 3,307.50 \$ 5,120.00 \$ 1,400.00 \$ 1,400.00 \$ 10,500.00 \$ 10,000.00 \$ 10,200.00
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 MISCELLA	VEGETATED EMERGENCY SPILLWAY - TOPSOIL VEGETATED EMERGENCY SPILLWAY - EROSION CONTROL BLANKET TEMPORARY GRASS SEEDING TURF GRASS SEEDING BERMUDA SOD SILT FENCE FILTER RING CONSTRUCTION EXIT CURB INLET PROTECTION TEMPORARY PUMP & FILTER BAG TEMPORARY STORMWATER BYPASS SYSTEM ANEOUS TRAFFIC CONTROL	SY SY SY SY SY LF EA EA EA LS LS	275 275 4410 2560 1,850 1,400 2 1 1 1 1 1	#29.50 #10.00 #0.75 #2.00 #9.00 #6.00 #6.00 #7,650.00 #10,500.00 \$10,500.00 \$10,000.00	\$ 8,112.50 \$ 2,750.00 \$ 3,307.50 \$5,120.00 \$16,650.00

Company Name: Summers Taylor, Inc.

Authorized Bid Rep. Signature: Pareick

TOTAL \$1,134,188.00

Authorized Bid Rep. Title: Vice President

BOND:

Date: ______Amount:

CONSTRUCTION PAYMENT BOND

Any singular reference to Contractor, Surety, Owner or other party shall be considered plural where applicable.

CONTRACTOR (Name and Address):

OWNER (Name and Address):

CITY OF DALTON
P.O. BOX 1205
DALTON, GEORGIA 30722

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT:
Date:

Amount:

Description (Name and location):

PRATER ALLEY STORMWATER DETENTION PROJECT
DALTON PROJECT NO. PW-2024-SP-171

SURETY (Name and Principal place of Business):

Bond No	umber:									
1. The	Contractor	and	Surety,	jointly	and	severally,	bind	themselves,	their	heirs,
executo	rs, administ	rators	s, succe	ssors a	nd as	ssigns to th	ne Ow	ner and for	the us	e and
protection	on of all sub	contra	actors ar	nd perso	ons si	upplvina lal	oor. m	aterials, mac	hinerv	and



CONSTRUCTION PAYMENT BOND

(Continued)

equipment in the prosecution of the Work involved in this Construction Contract.

- 2. With respect to the Owner, this obligation shall be null and void if the Contractor:
 - 2.1. Promptly makes payment, directly or indirectly, for all sums due Claimants, and
 - 2.2. Defends, indemnifies and holds harmless the Owner from claims, demands, liens or suits by any person or entity whose claim, demand, lien or suit is for payment for labor, materials or equipment furnished for use in the performance of the Construction Contract, provided the Owner has promptly notified the Contractor and the Surety (at the address described in Paragraph 11) of any claims, demands, liens or suits and tendered defense of such claims, demands, liens or suits to the Contractor and the Surety, and provided there is no Owner Default.
- 3. With respect to Claimants, this obligation shall be null and void if the Contractor promptly makes payment, directly or indirectly, for all sums due.
- 4. The Surety shall have no obligations to Claimant unless the Claimant has substantially complied with the requirements of O.C.G.A. 36-82-104 by giving the notices provided for therein. Each Claimant failing to substantially comply with said Code Section shall be deemed to have waived the protection of the payment bond. No Claimant shall file an action for payment against the Owner, Contractor or Surety, except in accordance with this section.
 - 4.1. Claimants who are employed by or have a direct contract with the Contractor have given notice to the Surety (at the address described in Paragraph 12) and sent a copy, or notice thereof, to the Owner, stating that a claim is being made under this Bond and, with substantial accuracy, the amount of the claim.
 - 4.2. Claimants who do not have a direct contract with the Contractor:
 - 1. Have furnished written notice to the Contractor and sent a copy, or notice thereof, to the Owner, within 90 days after having last performed labor or last furnished materials or equipment included in the claim stating, with substantial accuracy, the amount of the claim and the name of the party to whom the materials were furnished or supplied or for whom the labor was done or performed: and
 - 2. Have either received a rejection in whole or in part from the Contractor, or not received within 30 days of furnishing the above notice any communication from the Contractor by which the Contractor has indicated the claim will be paid directly or indirectly; and
 - 3. Not having been paid within the above 30 days, have sent a written notice



CONSTRUCTION PAYMENT BOND

(Continued)

to the Surety (at the address described in Paragraph 12) and sent a copy, or notice thereof, to the Owner, stating that a claim is being made under this Bond and enclosing a copy of the previous written notice furnished to the Contractor.

- 5. If a notice required by Paragraph 4 is given by the Owner to the Contractor or to the Surety, that is sufficient compliance.
- 6. When the Claimant has satisfied the conditions of Paragraph 4, the Surety shall promptly and at the Surety's expense take the following actions:
 - 6.1. Send an answer to the Claimant, with a copy to the Owner, within 45 days after receipt of the claim, stating the amounts that are undisputed and that basis for challenging any amounts that are disputed.
 - 6.2. Pay or arrange for payment of any undisputed amounts.
- 7. The Surety's total obligation shall not exceed the amount of this Bond and the amount of this Bond shall be credited for any payments made in good faith by the Surety.
- 8. Amounts owed by the Owner to the Contractor under the Construction Contract shall be used for the performance of the Construction Contract and to satisfy claims, if any, under any Construction Performance Bond. By the Contractor furnishing and the Owner accepting this Bond, they agree that all funds earned by the Contractor in the performance of the Construction Contract are dedicated to satisfy obligations of the Contractor and the Surety under this Bond, subject to the Owner's priority to use the funds for the completion of the work.
- 9. The Surety shall not be liable to the Owner, Claimants or others for obligations of the Contractor that are unrelated to the Construction Contract. The Owner shall not be liable for payment of any costs or expenses of any Claimant under this Bond, and shall have under this Bond no obligations to make payments to give notices on behalf of, or otherwise have obligations to Claimants under this Bond.
- 10. The Surety hereby waives notice of any change, including changes of time, to the Construction Contract or to related subcontracts, purchase orders and other obligations.
- 11. No suit or action on this bond shall be instituted by a Claimant after expiration of one (1) year from the completion of the contract and the acceptance of the work by the public entity responsible therefor.



CONSTRUCTION PAYMENT BOND (Continued)

- 12. Notice to the Surety, the Owner or the Contractor shall be mailed or delivered to the address shown on the signature page. Actual receipt of notice by Surety, the Owner or the Contractor, however accomplished, shall be sufficient compliance as of the date received at the address shown on this Bond.
- 13. When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a statutory or other legal requirement in the location where the construction was to be performed, any provision in the Bond conflicting with said statutory or legal requirement shall be deemed deleted herefrom and provisions conforming to such statutory or other legal requirement shall be deemed incorporated herein. The intent is, that this Bond shall be construed as a statutory bond and not as a common law bond.
- 14. Upon request by any person or entity appearing to be a potential beneficiary of this Bond, the

Contractor shall promptly furnish a copy of this Bond or shall permit a copy to be made.

15. DEFINITIONS

- 15.1. Claimant: An individual or entity having a direct contract with the Contractor or with a subcontractor of the Contractor to furnish labor, materials or equipment for use in the performance of the Contract. The intent of this Bond shall be to include without limitation in the terms "labor, materials or equipment" that part of water, gas, power, light, heat, oil, gasoline, telephone service or rental equipment used in the Construction Contract, architectural and engineering services required for performance of the work of the Contractor and the Contractor's subcontractors, and all other items for which a mechanic's lien may be asserted in the jurisdiction where the labor, materials or equipment were furnished.
- 15.2. Construction Contract: The agreement between the Owner and the Contractor identified on the signature page, including all Contract Documents and changes thereto.
- 15.3. Owner Default: Failure of the Owner, which has neither been remedied nor waived, to pay the Contractor as required by the Construction Contract or to perform and complete or comply with the other terms thereof.



PRATER ALLEY STORMWATER DETENTION PROJECT DALTON PROJECT NO. PW-2024-SP-171

CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL	SURETY			
Company:	Company:			
(Corp. Seal)	(Corp. Seal			
Signature:	Signature:			
Name and Title:	Name and Title:			



Any singular reference to Contractor, Surety, Owner or other party shall be considered plural where applicable.

CONTRACTOR (Name and Address):
OWNER (Name and Address):
CITY OF DALTON
P.O. BOX 1205
DALTON, GEORGIA 30722
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT:
Date:
Amount:
Description (Name and location):
PRATER ALLEY STORMWATER DETENTION PROJECT DALTON PROJECT NO. PW-2024-SP-171
SURETY (Name and Principal place of Business):
BOND:
Date:
Amount:
Bond number:

- 1. The Contractor and the Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns to the Owner for the performance of the Construction Contract, which is incorporated herein by reference.
- 2. If the Contractor performs the Construction Contract, the Surety and the Contractor



(Continued)

shall have no obligation under this Bond, except to participate in conferences as provided in Subparagraph 3.1.

- 3. If there is no Owner Default, the Surety's obligation under this Bond shall arise after:
 - 3.1. The Owner has notified the Contractor and the Surety at its address described in Paragraph 10 below, that the Owner is considering declaring a Contractor Default and has requested and attempted to arrange a conference with the Contractor and the Surety to be held not later than fifteen days after receipt of such notice to discuss methods of performing the Construction Contract. If the Owner, the Contractor and the Surety agree, the Contractor shall be allowed a reasonable time to perform the Construction Contract, but such an agreement shall not waive the Owner's right, if any, subsequently to declare a Contractor Default; and
 - 3.2. The Owner has declared a Contractor Default and formally terminated the Contractor's right to complete the contract. Such Contractor Default shall not be declared earlier than twenty days after the Contractor and the Surety have received notice as provided in Subparagraph 3.1; and
 - 3.3. The Owner has agreed to pay the Balance of the Contract Price to the Surety in accordance with the terms of the Construction Contract or to a contractor selected to perform the Construction Contract in accordance with the terms of the contract with the Owner.
- 4. When the Owner has satisfied the conditions of Paragraph 3, the Surety shall promptly and at the Surety's expense take one of the following actions:
 - 4.1. Arrange for the Contractor, with consent of the Owner, to perform and complete the Construction Contract; or
 - 4.2. Undertake to perform and complete the Construction Contract itself, through its agents or through independent contractors; or
 - 4.3. Obtain bids or negotiated proposals from qualified contractors acceptable to the Owner for a contract for performance and completion of the Construction Contract, arrange for a contract to be prepared for execution by the Owner and the contractor selected with the Owner's concurrence, to be secured with performance and payment bonds executed by a qualified surety equivalent to the bonds issued on the Construction Contract, and pay to the Owner the amount of damages as described in Paragraph 6 in excess of the Balance of the Contract Price incurred by the Owner resulting from the Contractor's default; or
 - 4.4. Waive its right to perform and complete, arrange for completion, or obtain a new contractor and with reasonable promptness under the circumstances:
 - 1. After investigation, determine the amount for which it may be liable to the



(Continued)

Owner and, as soon as practicable after the amount is determined, tender payment therefore to the Owner; or

- 2. Deny liability in whole or in part and notify the Owner citing reasons therefor.
- 5. If the Surety does not proceed as provided in Paragraph 4 with reasonable promptness, the Surety shall be deemed to be in default on this Bond fifteen days after receipt of an additional written notice from the Owner to the Surety demanding that the Surety perform its obligations under this Bond, and the Owner shall be entitled to enforce any remedy available to the Owner. If the Surety proceeds as provided in Subparagraph 4.4, and the Owner refuses the payment tendered or the Surety has denied liability, in whole or in part, without further notice the Owner shall be entitled to enforce any remedy available to the Owner.
- 6. After the Owner has terminated the Contractor's right to complete the Construction Contract, and if the Surety elects to act under Subparagraph 4.1, 4.2, or 4.3 above, then the responsibilities of the Surety to the Owner shall not be greater than those of the Contractor under the Construction Contract, and the responsibilities of the Owner to the Surety shall not be greater than those of the Owner under the Construction Contract. To the limit of the amount of this Bond, but subject to commitment by the Owner of the Balance of the Contract Price to mitigation of costs and damages on the Construction Contract, the Surety is obligated without duplication for:
 - 6.1. The responsibilities of the Contractor for correction of defective work and completion of the Construction Contract;
 - 6.2. Additional legal, design professional and delay costs resulting from the Contractor's Default, and resulting from the actions or failure to act of the Surety under Paragraph 4; and
 - 6.3. Liquidated damages, or if no liquidated damages are specified in the Construction Contract, actual damages caused by delayed performance or non-performance of the Contractor.
- 7. The Surety shall not be liable to the Owner or others for obligations of the Contractor that are unrelated to the Construction Contract, and the Balance of the Contract Price shall not be reduced or set off on account of any such unrelated obligations. No right of action shall accrue on this Bond to any person or entity other than the Owner or its heirs, executors, administrators, or successors.
- 8. The Surety hereby waives notice of any change, including changes of time to the Construction Contract or to related subcontracts, purchase orders and other obligations.



(Continued)

- 9. Any proceeding, legal or equitable, under this Bond may be instituted in any court of competent jurisdiction in the location in which the work or part of the work is located and shall be instituted within two years after Contractor Default or within two years after the Contractor ceased working or within two years after the Surety refuses or fails to perform its obligations under this Bond, whichever occurs first. If the provisions of this Paragraph are void or prohibited by law, the minimum period of limitation available to sureties as a defense in the jurisdiction of the suit shall be applicable.
- 10. Notice to the Surety, the Owner or the Contractor shall be mailed or delivered to the address shown on the signature page.
- 11. When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a statutory or other legal requirement in the location where the construction was to be performed, any provision in this Bond conflicting with said statutory or legal requirement shall be deemed deleted herefrom and provisions conforming to such statutory or other legal requirement shall be deemed incorporated herein. The intent is that this Bond shall be construed as a statutory bond and not as a common law bond.

12. Definitions.

- 12.1. Balance of the Contract Price: The total amount payable by the Owner to the Contractor under the Construction Contract after all proper adjustments have been made, including allowance to the Contractor of any amounts received or to be received by the Owner in settlement of insurance or other claims for damages to which the Contractor is entitled, reduced by all valid and proper payments made to or on behalf of the Contractor under the Construction Contract.
- 12.2. Construction Contract: The agreement between the Owner and the Contractor identified on the signature page, including all Contract Documents and changes thereto.
- 12.3. Contractor Default: Failure of the Contractor, which has neither been remedied nor waived, to perform or otherwise to comply with the terms of the Construction Contract.
- 12.4. Owner Default: Failure of the Owner, which has neither been remedied nor waived, to pay the Contractor as required by the Construction Contract or to perform and complete or comply with the other terms thereof.

CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL	SURETY
Company:	Company:



PRATER ALLEY STORMWATER DETENTION PROJECT DALTON PROJECT NO. PW-2024-SP-171

	(Corp. Seal)		(Corp. Seal
Signature:		Signature:	
Name and Title:		Name and Title:	



CONTRACT

THIS	AGREEM	IENT	made t	his th	ne <u>6th</u>	day of M	ay		<u>24</u> ,	by
and	between	the	CITY	OF	DALTON,	GEORGIA,	hereinafter	called	''Owr	ıer'',
and .	Summ	ers-	Γaylor,	Inc.						
a coi	ntractor do	ing b	usiness	s as a	n individual	, a partnershi	p, or a corpo	oration* o	f the	City
of 	Johnson C	City	, Count	y of _	Washingto	on , and State	e of Ten	nessee		
here	inafter call	ed "C	ontract	or''						

WITNESSETH: That for and in consideration of the payments and agreements hereinafter mentioned, to be made and performed by the Owner, the Contractor hereby agrees to commence and complete the construction of the project entitled:

PRATER ALLEY STORMWATER DETENTION PROJECT DALTON PROJECT NO. PW-2024-SP-171

hereinafter called the "Project", for the sum of _	\$1,134,188.00
Dollars () and all extra work in connection the	erewith, under the terms as stated in the
Contract Documents, and at his <i>(its or their)</i> ov	vn proper cost and expense to furnish all
materials, supplies, machinery, equipment, too	ls, superintendence, labor, insurance and
other accessories and services necessary to co	
the conditions and prices stated in the proposa	•
the specifications and contract documents the	
enumerated in the General Conditions, all of wh	ich are made a part hereof and collectively
constitute the Contract.	

The Contractor hereby agrees to commence work under this contract on or before a date to be specified in a written "Notice to Proceed" of the Owner and to fully complete the project within 24 weeks of receiving "Notice to Proceed". The Contractor further agrees to pay as liquidated damages the sum of \$300.00 for each consecutive calendar day thereafter as hereinafter provided in the General Conditions under "Time of Completion and Liquidated Damages."

*Strike out inapplicable terms.



CONTRACT (Continued)

The Owner agrees to pay the Contractor in current funds for the performance of the contract, subject to additions and deductions as provided in the General Conditions of the Contract, and to make payments on account thereof as provided in "Payments to Contractor," of the General Conditions.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties to those presents have executed this contract in five (5) counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, in the year and day first above mentioned.

ATTEST:	CITY OF DALTON, GEORGIA		
City Clerk	Ву:		
Witness	Title		
ATTEST:			
Secretary	By:	SEAL	
Witness	Title		
Secretary of Owner should attest. I	If Contractor is corporation, secret	ary should attest.	
Give proper title of each person ex	ecuting contract.		



CONTRACTOR AFFIDAVIT AND AGREEMENT

By executing this affidavit, the undersigned contractor verifies its compliance with O.C.G.A. 13-10-91, stating affirmatively that the individual, firm, or corporation which is contracting with City of Dalton has registered with and is participating in a federal work authorization program* [any of the electronic verification of work authorization programs operated by the United States Department of Homeland Security or any equivalent federal work authorization program operated by the United States Department of Homeland Security to verify information of newly hired employees, pursuant to the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (IRCA), P.L. 99-603], in accordance with the applicability provisions and deadlines established in O.C.G.A. 13-10-91.

The undersigned further agrees that, should it employ or contract with any subcontractor(s) in connection with the physical performance of services pursuant to this contract with City of Dalton, contractor will secure from such subcontractor(s) similar verification of compliance with O.C.G.A. 13-10-91 on the Subcontractor Affidavit provided in Rule 300-10-01-.08 or substantially similar form. Contractor further agrees to maintain records of such compliance and provide a copy of each such verification to the City of Dalton at the time the subcontractor(s) is retained to perform such service.

The undersigned Contractor is using and will continue to use the federal work authorization program throughout the contract period.

415715	
EEV/Basic Pilot Program* User Identification Number	
Summers-Taylor Inc.	4/5/24
BY: Authorized Officer or Agent (Contractor Name)	Date
Vice-President	
Title of Authorized Officer or Agent of Contractor	
Lee Hamrick	
Printed Name of Authorized Officer or Agent	
	ARY BANK
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN	GHE
BEFORE ME ON THIS THE	STATE OF
5# DAY OF april , 2024	TENNESSEE
Therex Kaines	NOTARY
Notary Public	De la constitución de la constit
My Commission Expires:	S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S
4120126	Age of the second



^{*} As of the effective date of O.C.G.A. 13-10-91, the applicable federal work authorization program is the "EEV/Basic Pilot Program" operated by the U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services Bureau of the U.S. Department of Homeland Security, in conjunction with the Social Security Administration (SSA).

SECTION 0300 - GENERAL CONDITIONS

0301 CONTRACT AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

The Contract Documents as hereinafter enumerated in Paragraph 2 of the General Conditions, shall form this Contract and the provisions thereof shall be as binding upon the parties hereto as if they were fully set forth. The Table of Contents, Titles, Headings, Running Headlines and Marginal Notes contained herein and in said documents are solely to facilitate reference to various provisions of the Contract Documents and in no way effect, limit or cast light on the interpretation of the provisions to which they refer.

0302 <u>DEFINITIONS</u>

The following terms as used in this contract are respectively defined as follows:

- 0302.01 <u>Contractor</u> A person, firm or corporation with whom the contract is made by the Owner.
- O302.02 Contract Documents The Contract Documents are composed of the Advertisement for Bids; Instructions to Bidders; Bid Package; Form of Proposal, General Conditions, Supplementary Conditions, Detail Specifications, Form of Contract, Form of Bond(s), Addenda and the drawings including all changes incorporated herein before their execution.
- 0302.03 <u>Project Representative</u> Refers to the authorized representative of the Owner, who is assigned to the site or any part thereof.
- 0302.04 Owner The party of the First Part in the accompanying Contract, and meaning the CITY OF DALTON, GEORGIA.
- O302.05 <u>Subcontractor</u> A person, firm or corporation supplying labor and materials or only labor for work at the site of the project for, and under separate contract or agreement with the contractor for performance of a part of the work at the site.
- 0302.06 Work on (at) the Project Work to be performed at the location of the project, including the transportation of materials and supplies to or from the location of the project by employees of the Contractor and any Subcontractor.

0303 CORRELATION AND INTENT OF DOCUMENTS

The contract documents are complementary, and what is called for by any one shall be as binding as if called for by all.

0303.01 The intent of the documents is to describe all construction entailed in this



project. The contractor will furnish all labor and materials, equipment, transportation, tools and appurtenances such as may be reasonably required under the terms of the contract to make each part of the work complete.

O303.02 The Drawings are intended to conform and agree with the Specifications; if, however, discrepancies occur, the Owner will decide which shall govern. Special specifications stated on the Drawings govern that particular piece of construction and have equal weight and importance as the printed specifications. In the event of any discrepancies between the Drawings and the figures written thereon, the figures are to be taken as correct.

0304 MATERIALS, SERVICES AND FACILITIES

O304.01 It is understood that except as otherwise specifically stated in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall provide and pay for all materials, labor, tools, equipment, water, light, power, transportation, superintendence, temporary construction of every nature, and all other services and facilities of every nature whatsoever necessary to execute, complete, and deliver the work within the specified time. It is further understood that in providing materials, labor, tools, equipment, water, light, power, superintendence, or any other expense associated with the Contract the Contractor may not take advantage of the City's tax exempt status.

O304.02 Any work necessary to be performed by the Contractor to complete the project on time after regular working hours, on Sundays or Legal Holidays, shall be performed without additional expense to the Owner.

0305 CONTRACTOR'S TITLE TO MATERIALS

No materials or supplies for the work shall be purchased by the Contractor or by any Subcontractor subject to any chattel mortgage or under a conditional sale contract or other agreement by which an interest is retained by the seller. The Contractor warrants that he has good title to all materials and supplies used by him in the work, free from all liens, claims and/or encumbrances.

0306 MATERIALS FURNISHED BY THE CONTRACTOR

All materials used in the work including equipment shall be new and unused materials of a reputable U.S. Manufacturer conforming to the applicable requirements of the Specifications, and no materials shall be used in the work until they have been approved by the Owner. The Contractor shall furnish all materials necessary except as otherwise specifically noted or specified.



0307 INSPECTION AND TESTING OF MATERIALS

All materials and equipment used in the construction of the project shall be subject to adequate inspection and testing in accordance with accepted standards. The laboratory or inspection agency shall be selected by the Owner. Materials of construction, particularly those upon which the strength and durability of the structure may depend, shall be subject to inspection and testing to establish conformance with specifications and suitability for uses intended.

0308 PATENTS

- O308.01 The Contractor shall hold and save the Owner and its officers, agents, servants, and employees harmless from liability of any nature or kind, including cost and expenses for, or on account of, any patented or unpatented invention, process, article, or appliance manufactured or used in the performance of the contract, including its use by the Owner, unless otherwise specifically stipulated in the Contract Documents.
- O308.02 License and/or Royalty Fees for the use of a process which is authorized by the Owner of the project must be reasonable, and paid to the holder of the patent, or his authorized licensee, direct by the Owner and not by or through the Contractor.
- O308.03 If the Contractor uses any design, device or materials covered by letters, patent or copyright, he shall provide for such use by suitable agreement with the Owner of such patented or copyrighted design, device or material. It is mutually agreed and understood, that, without exception, arising from the use of such design, device, or materials or in any way involved in the work, the Contractor and/or his Sureties shall indemnify and save harmless the Owner of the project from all claims for infringement by the reason of the use of such patented or copyrighted design, device or materials or any trademark or copyright in connection with work agreed to be performed under this contract and shall indemnify the Owner for any cost, expense or damage which it may be obliged to pay by reason of such infringement at any time during the prosecution of the work or after completion of the work.

0309 SURVEYS, PERMITS AND REGULATIONS

- 0309.01 Unless otherwise expressly provided for in the Specifications, the Owner will furnish to the Contractor any control alignment and bench mark data from previous engineering surveys.
- O309.02 The Contractor shall procure and pay all permits, licenses and approvals necessary for the execution of his contract. The Contractor shall comply with all laws, ordinances, rules, orders, and regulations relating to performance of the work, the protection of adjacent property, and the



maintenance of passageways, guard fences or other protective facilities.

0310 CONTRACTOR'S OBLIGATIONS

- O310.01 The Contractor shall and will, in good workmanlike manner do and perform all work and furnish all supplies and materials, machinery, equipment, facilities and means, except as herein otherwise expressly specified, necessary or proper to perform and complete all the work required by this contract, within the time herein specified, in accordance with the plans and drawings covered by this contract, any and all supplemental plans and drawings and in accordance with the directions of the Owner as given from time to time during the progress of the work. He shall furnish, erect, maintain and remove such construction plant and such temporary works as may be required. He alone shall be responsible for the safety, efficiency and adequacy of his plant, appliances, and methods, and for any damage which may result from their failure of their improper construction, maintenance or operation.
- O310.02 The Contractor shall observe, comply with and be subject to all terms, conditions, requirements, and limitations of the Contract and specifications and shall do, carry on, and complete the entire work to the satisfaction of the Owner.
- 0310.03 Contractor shall be required to submit a construction schedule, for all stages of the project through completion to the Owner prior to beginning construction services specified within awarded contract.

0311 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

The Contractor shall be responsible for all material and work until they are finally accepted by the Owner and shall repair at his own expense any damage that they sustain before their final acceptance. The Contractor shall be responsible for all damages caused by him of whatever nature and must settle all claims arising from such damage without cost to the Owner; he shall act as defendant in, and bear the expense of each and every suit of any and every nature which may be brought against him or the Owner, by reason of, or connected with the work under the Contract. Should any claim arise, the Owner may hold back sufficient money to meet said claims or until the Contractor has satisfied the Owner that all claims against him as the result of his work have been adjusted. He must also show that there are no claims or liens whatsoever outstanding at the completion of his contract before final payment is made.

0312 WEATHER CONDITIONS

In the event of temporary suspension of work, or during inclement weather, or whenever the Owner shall direct, the Contractor will, and will cause his



subcontractors to protect carefully his and their work and materials against damage or injury from the weather. If, in the opinion of the Owner, any work or materials shall have been damaged or injured by reason of failure on the part of the Contractor or any of his subcontractors so to protect his work, such materials shall be removed and replaced at the expense of the Contractor.

0313 SAFETY PROVISIONS

- O313.01 The Contractor shall comply with the Department of Labor Safety and Health Regulations for construction promulgated under the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (*PL 91-596*) and under Sec.107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (*PL 91-54*).
- O313.02 The Contractor shall be responsible for the Safety, efficiency and adequacy of his plant, appliances and methods, and for any damage which may result from their failure of their improper construction, maintenance and operation.
- O313.03 The Contractor shall employ, when necessary, watchmen on the work and shall, when necessary, erect and maintain such strong and suitable barriers and such light as will effectually prevent the happening of any accident to health, limb or property.

0314 SANITARY PROVISIONS

The Contractor shall provide and maintain in a neat and sanitary condition such accommodations for the use of his employees as may be necessary to comply with the regulations of the State Board of Health and all local ordinances. No nuisance will be permitted.

0315 PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND SAFETY

Materials stored at the site of the work shall be so placed and the work shall, at all times, be so conducted as to cause no greater obstruction to traffic than is considered permissible by the Owner. No roadway shall be closed or opened except by express permission of the Owner and the Contractor's proper notification of local fire and police departments. Precaution shall be exercised at all times for the protection of persons and property. The safety provisions of applicable laws, building and construction codes shall be observed. Machinery, equipment and other hazards shall be guarded in accordance with the safety provisions of the manual of Accident Prevention in Construction, published by the Associated General Contractors of America to extent that such provisions are not in contravention of applicable laws.

0316 PROTECTION OF WORK AND PROPERTY - EMERGENCY

The Contractor shall at all times safely guard the Owner's property from injury or



loss in connection with this contract. He shall at all times safely guard and protect his own work, and that of adjacent property from damage. The Contractor shall replace or make good any such damage, loss or injury unless such be caused directly by errors contained in the contract or by the Owner, or his duly authorized representative.

- O316.01 In case of an emergency which threatens loss or injury of property, and/or safety of life, the Contractor will be allowed to act, without previous instructions from the Owner in a diligent manner. He shall notify the Owner immediately thereafter. Any claim for compensation by the Contractor due to such extra work shall be promptly submitted to the Owner for approval.
- 0316.02 Where the Contractor has not taken action but has notified the Owner of an emergency threatening injury to persons or damage to the work or any adjoining property, he shall act as instructed or authorized by the Owner.
- O316.03 The amount of reimbursement claimed by the Contractor on account of any emergency action shall be determined in the manner provided in Paragraph 0327 of the General Conditions.

0317 INSPECTION

The authorized representatives and agents of the Owner shall be permitted to observe all work, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, invoices of materials and other relevant data and records.

0318 REPORTS, RECORDS AND DATA

The Contractor shall submit to the Owner such schedule of quantities and costs, progress schedules, payrolls, reports, estimates, records and other data as the Owner may request concerning work performed or to be performed under this contract.

0319 SUPERINTENDENCE BY CONTRACTOR

At the site of the work, the Contractor shall employ a construction superintendent or foreman who shall have full authority to act for the Contractor. It is understood that such representative shall be acceptable to the Owner and shall be one who can be continued in that capacity for the particular job involved unless he ceases to be on the Contractor's payroll.

0320 COMPETENT LABOR

O320.01 The Contractor shall employ only competent and skilled workers on the project. The Contractor shall have a competent superintendent or foreman present at all times when the work is in progress and with authority to



receive orders and execute the work.

O320.02 The Contractor shall, upon demand from the Owner, immediately remove any superintendent, foreman or worker whom the Owner may consider incompetent or undesirable.

0321 CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT

The Contractor shall provide all necessary equipment in good repair for the expeditious construction of the work. Any equipment not adapted for the work, in such repair as to be dangerous to the project or workers, shall not be used.

0322 CHANGES IN THE WORK

- 0322.01 Without invalidating the Agreement, the Owner may, at any time or from time to time, order additions, deletions or revisions in the Work; these will be authorized by Change Orders. Upon receipt of a Change Order, the Contractor will proceed with the Work involved. All such Work shall be executed under the applicable conditions of the Contract Documents. If any Change Order causes an increase or decrease in the Contract Price or an extension or shortening of the Contract Time, an equitable adjustment will be made as provided in Paragraph 0323. A Change Order signed by the Contractor indicates his agreement therewith.
- O322.02 The Owner may authorize minor changes or alterations in the Work not involving extra cost and not inconsistent with the overall intent of the Contract Documents. These may be accomplished by a Field Order. If the Contractor believes that any Field Order authorized by the Owner entitles him to an increase in the Contract Price or extension of Contract Time, he shall inform the Owner in writing of the amount of increased price or time associated with the Field Order, and he shall include reference to appropriate contract documents supporting the basis for the claim, and he shall not proceed with the work in question until a written decision has been rendered by the Owner.
- O322.03 Any changes or additional work performed by the Contractor without authorization of a Change Order will not entitle him to an increase in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Time, except in the case of an emergency.
- O322.04 It is the Contractor's responsibility to notify his surety of any changes affecting the general scope of the Work or change in the Contract Price and the amount of the applicable bonds shall be adjusted accordingly. The Contractor will furnish proof of such adjustment to the Owner.
- 0322.05 The term Change Order is defined as a written order to the Contractor



- signed by the Owner which authorizes a change in the work or the contract price or the contract time issued after execution of the Agreement.
- O322.06 The Contract Price constitutes the total compensation payable to the Contractor for performing the Work. All duties, responsibilities and obligations assigned to or undertaken by the Contractor shall be at his expense without changing the Contract Price, except where authorized by Change Order.

0323 CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE

- O323.01 The value of any Work covered by a Change Order or of any claim for an increase or decrease in the Contract Price shall be determined in one of the following ways:
 - O323.01.1 Where the Work involved is covered by unit prices contained in the Contract Documents, by application of unit prices to the quantities of the items involved.
 - 0323.01.2 By mutual acceptance of a lump sum (which may include an allowance for overhead and profit not necessarily in accordance with Paragraph 0323.04.2.1).
 - On the basis of the Cost of the Work (determined as provided in Paragraphs 0323.04 and 0323.05) plus a Contractor's Fee for overhead and profit (determined as provided in Paragraphs 0323.4 and 0323.05).
- O323.02 The term Cost of the Work means the sum of all costs necessarily incurred and paid by the Contractor in the proper performance of the Work. Except as otherwise may be agreed to in writing by Owner, such costs shall be in amounts no higher than those prevailing in the locality of the Project, shall include only the following items and shall not include any of the costs itemized in Paragraph 0323.03.
 - Payroll costs for employees in the direct employ of Contractor in the performance of the Work under schedules of job classifications agreed upon by Owner and Contractor. Payroll costs for employees not employed full time on the Work shall be apportioned on the basis of their time spent on the Work. Payroll costs shall include, but not be limited to, salaries and wages plus the cost of fringe benefits which shall include social security contributions, unemployment, excise and payroll taxes, workmen's compensation, health and retirement benefits, bonuses, sick leave, vacation and holiday pay applicable thereto. Such employees shall include superintendents and foremen at the site. The expenses of performing work after



- hours, on Sunday or legal holidays shall be included in the above to the extent authorized by Owner.
- O323.02.2 Cost of all materials and equipment furnished and incorporated in the Work, including costs of transportation and storage thereof, and manufacturers' field services required in connection therewith.
- O323.02.3 Payments made by Contractor to the Subcontractors for Work performed by Subcontractors. If required by Owner, Contractor shall obtain competitive bids from Subcontractors acceptable to him and shall deliver such Bids to Owner who will then determine which Bids will be accepted.
- 0323.02.4 Costs of special consultants (including, but not limited to, engineers, architects, testing laboratories, surveyors, lawyers, and accountants) employed for services specifically related to the Work.
- 0323.02.5 Supplemental costs including the following:
- 0323.02.5.1 The proportion of necessary transportation, traveling and subsistence expenses of Contractor's employees incurred in discharge of duties connected with the Work.
- O323.02.5.2 Cost, including transportation and maintenance, of all materials, supplies, equipment, machinery, appliances, office and temporary facilities at the site and hand tools not owned by the workmen, which are consumed in the performance of the Work, and cost less market value of such items used but not consumed which remain the property of Contractor.
- 0323.02.5.3 Rentals of all construction equipment and machinery and the parts thereof whether rented from Contractor or others in accordance with rental agreements approved by Owner and the costs of transportation, loading, unloading, installation, dismantling and removal thereof all in accordance with terms of said rental agreements. The rental of any such equipment, machinery or parts shall cease when the use thereof is no longer necessary for the Work.
- 0323.02.5.4 Sales, use or similar taxes related to the Work, and for which Contractor is liable, imposed by any governmental authority.
- 0323.02.5.5 Deposits lost for causes other than Contractor's negligence, royalty payments and fees for permits and licenses. Costs for permits and licenses must be shown as a separate item.



- 0323.02.5.6 Losses, damages and expenses, not compensated by insurance or otherwise, sustained by Contractor in connection with the execution of, and to, the Work, provided they have resulted from causes other than the negligence of Contractor, any Subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable. Such losses shall include settlements made with the written consent and approval of Owner. No such losses, damages and expenses shall be included in the Cost of the Work for the purpose of determining Contractor's Fee.
- 0323.02.5.7 The cost of utilities, fuel and sanitary facilities at the site.
- 0323.02.5.8 Minor expenses such as telegrams, long distance telephone calls, telephone service at the site, expressage and similar petty cash items in connection with the Work.
- 0323.02.5.9 Cost of premiums for additional Bonds and Insurance required because of changes in the Work.
- 0323.03 The term Cost of the Work shall not include any of the following:
 - O323.03.1 Payroll costs and other compensation of Contractor's officers, executives, principals (of partnership and sole proprietorships), general managers, engineers, architects, estimators, lawyers, auditors, accountants, purchasing and contracting agents, expediters, timekeepers, clerks and other personnel employed by Contractor whether at the site or in his principal or a branch office for general administration of the Work and not specifically included in the schedule referred to in subparagraph 0323.02.1 all of which are to be considered administrative costs covered by the Contractor's Fee.
 - 0323.03.2 Expenses of Contractor's principal and branch offices other than his office at the site.
 - O323.03.3 Any part of Contractor's capital expenses, including interest on Contractor's capital employed for the Work and charges against Contractor for delinquent payments.
 - O323.03.4 Costs due to the negligence of Contractor, any Subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable, including but not limited to, the correction of defective work, disposal of materials or equipment wrongly supplied and making good any damage to property.
 - Other overhead or general expense costs of any kind and the costs of any item not specifically and expressly included in Paragraph 0323.04.



- O323.04 The Contractor's Fee which shall be allowed to Contractor for his overhead and profit shall be determined as follows:
 - 0323.04.1 a mutually acceptable firm fixed price; or if none can be agreed upon.
 - o323.04.2 a fee based on the following percentages of the various portions of the Cost of the Work.
 - 0323.04.2.1 for costs incurred under paragraphs 0323.02.1 and 0323.02.2, the Contractor's Fee shall be fifteen percent.
 - osciolation of the Work of the Moral of the
 - 0323.04.2.3 no fee shall be payable on the basis of costs itemized under paragraphs 0323.02.4, 0323.02.5, and 0323.03;
 - the amount of credit to be allowed by Contractor to Owner for any such change which results in a net decrease in cost will be the amount of the actual net decrease plus a deduction in Contractor's Fee by an amount equal to ten percent of the net decrease; and
 - 0323.04.2.5 when both additions and credits are involved in any one change, the adjustment in Contractor's Fee shall be computed on the basis of the net change in accordance with paragraphs 0323.04.2.1 through 0323.04.2.4, inclusive.
- 0323.05 Whenever the cost of any Work is to be determined pursuant to Paragraph 0323.02 or 0323.03. Contractor will submit in form acceptable to Owner an itemized cost breakdown together with supporting data.

0324 CHANGE OF THE CONTRACT TIME

The Contract Time may only be changed by a Change Order. Any claim for an extension in the Contract Time shall be based on written notice delivered to Owner within ten days of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the claim. Notice of the extent of the claim with supporting data shall be delivered within forty-five days of such occurrence unless Owner allows an additional period of time to ascertain more accurate data. Any change in the Contract Time resulting from any such claim shall be incorporated in a Change Order.

0324.01 The Contract Time will be extended in an amount equal to time lost due to



delays beyond the control of CONTRACTOR if he makes a claim therefor as provided in Paragraph 0324. Such delays shall include, but not be restricted to, acts or neglect by any separate contractor employed by Owner, fires, floods, labor disputes, epidemics, abnormal weather conditions, or acts of God.

O324.02 All time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Agreement. The provisions of this Paragraph 0324 shall not exclude recovery for damages (including compensation for additional professional services) for delay by either party.

0325 CORRECTION OF WORK

All work, all materials, whether incorporated in the work or not, all processes of manufacture, and all methods of construction shall be at all times and places subject to the review of the Owner who shall be the final judge of the quality and suitability of the work, material, processes of manufacture and methods of construction for the purpose for which they are used. Should they fail too meet his approval, they shall be forthwith reconstructed, made good, replaced and/or corrected, as the case may be, by the Contractor at his own expense. Rejected material shall immediately be removed from the site. If, in the opinion of the Engineer, it is undesirable to replace any defective or damaged materials or to reconstruct or correct any portion of the work injured or not performed in accordance with the Contract Documents, the compensation to be paid to the Contractor hereunder shall be reduced by such amount as in the judgment of the Engineer shall be equitable. It is not intended that the Engineer should be liable for the Contractor's performance of the work nor for safety during construction.

0326 EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AND STRUCTURES

- O326.01 The Owners and/or operators of private or public utilities shall have access to such utility at all times, for the installation, maintenance, adjustment, repair and operation of said utility. No extra compensation will be allowed because of the delay or interference caused by such work.
- 0326.02 Wherever existing utilities are encountered which conflict in actual position and location with the proposed work, the Contractor shall promptly notify the Owner for resolution of the conflict.
- O326.03 The Contractor shall be solely and directly responsible to the Owner and/or other operator of such utility properties for any damage, injury, expense, loss, inconvenience or delay, or for any suits, actions, claims of any character brought on account of any injuries or damages which may result from the carrying out of the work.



0327 SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS FOUND DIFFERENT

Should the Contractor encounter sub-surface and/or latent conditions at the site materially differing from those shown on the plans or indicated in the specifications, he shall immediately give notice to the Owner of such conditions before they are disturbed. The Owner will thereupon promptly investigate the conditions, and if he finds that they materially differ from those shown on the plans or indicated in the specifications, he will at once make such changes in the plans and/or specifications as he may find necessary, any increase or decrease of cost resulting from such changes to be adjusted in the manner provided in Paragraph 0323 of the General Conditions.

0328 CLAIMS FOR EXTRA WORK

No claim for extra work or cost shall be allowed unless the same was one in pursuance of a written order of the Owner and approved by the Owner, as aforesaid, and the claim presented with the first estimate after the changed or extra work is done. When work is performed under the terms of Subparagraph 0322 of the General Conditions, the Contractor shall furnish satisfactory bills, payrolls and vouchers covering all items of cost and when requested by the Owner, give the Owner access to accounts relating thereto.

0329 RIGHT OF THE OWNER TO TERMINATE CONTRACT

In the event that any of the provisions of this contract are violated by the Contractor or by any of his Subcontractors, the Owner may serve written notice upon the Contractor and the surety of its intention to terminate the contract, such notices to contain the reasons for such intention to terminate the contract, and unless within ten (10) days after the serving of such notice upon the Contractor such violation or delay shall cease and satisfactory arrangement of correction be made, the contract shall, upon the expiration of said ten (10) days, cease and terminate. In the event of any such termination the Owner shall immediately serve notice thereof upon the Surety and the Contractor and the Surety shall have the right to take over and perform the contract; provided, however, that if the Surety does not commence performance thereof within ten (10) days from the date of the mailing to such Surety of notice of termination, the Owner may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion by contract or by force account for the account and at the expense of the Contractor and the Contractor and his Surety shall be liable to the Owner for any excess cost occasioned the Owner thereby, and in such event the Owner may take possession of and utilize in completing the work, such materials, appliances and plant as may be on the site of the work and necessary therefor.

0330 CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE AND PERIODIC ESTIMATES

Immediately after execution and delivery of the contract, and before the first partial payment is made, the Contractor shall deliver to the Owner an estimated



construction progress schedule in form satisfactory to the Owner showing the proposed dates of commencement and completion of each of the various subdivisions of work required under the contract documents and the anticipated amount of each monthly payment that will become due the Contractor in accordance with the progress schedule. The Contractor shall also furnish on forms to be supplied by the Owner, (a) a detailed estimate giving a complete breakdown of the contract price and (b) periodic itemized estimate of work done for the purpose of making partial payments thereon. The costs employed in making up any of these schedules will be used only for determining the basis of partial payments and will not be considered as fixing a basis for additions to or deductions from the contract price.

0331 PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTORS

0331.01 The amount of Retainage Schedule shall be as follows:

- Five (5%) percent of each progress payment shall be withheld as retainage for the life of the project, including change orders and other authorized additions provided in the Contract is due;
- When the Work is substantially complete (operational or beneficial occupancy) and City determines the Work to be reasonably acceptable, the Contractor shall submit an invoice or other documents as may be required and receive payment thereof within thirty (30) days. If there are any remaining incomplete minor items, an amount equal to two hundred (200%) percent of the value of each item, as determined by City, shall be withheld until such items are completed.
- This Contract is governed by O.C.G.A. § 13-10-2 through O.C.G.A § 13-10-80, which requires that the Contractor, within ten (10) days of receipt of retainage from City, pass through payments to Subcontractors and reduce each Subcontractor's retainage accordingly. The Code provision also requires Subcontractors to pass through payments to Lower Tier Subcontractors and reduce each lower tier contractor's retainage. Therefore, City, in its discretion, may require the Contractor to submit satisfactory evidence that all payrolls, material bills, or other indebtedness connected with the Work have been paid before making any payment.
- Within sixty (60) days after the Work is fully completed and accepted by City, the balance due hereunder shall be paid; provided, however, that final payment shall not be made until said Contractor shall have completed all work necessary and reasonably incidental to the Contract, including final cleanup and restoration. All claims by the Contractor for breach of contract, violation of state or federal law or for compensation such claims shall be forever barred. In such event no further payment to the Contractor shall be deemed to be due under this agreement until such new or additional security for the faithful performance of the Work shall be furnished in manner and form satisfactory to City.

- 0331.02 Where a project is under the jurisdiction of a Force Account Agreement between the Owner and the Georgia Department of Transportation, the Contractor shall maintain a daily report of the amount of completed work as shown in the bid proposal. A copy of the accepted report appears in Appendix A, if applicable, at the end of this section and may be reproduced for use on this project. The Contractor's representative shall certify by signature that the report is accurate on behalf of the Contractor for the Owner (shown as "Utility" on the report). The Project Engineer representing the Georgia Department of Transportation shall certify by signature that the report is accurate for the "State". A copy of each days report properly certified as required by this part shall accompany each progress payment request by the Contractor. The quantity of work completed shown on the progress payment request must be supported by an equal quantity shown on the daily report for that progress payment period. Payment requested for quantities of work not supported by a properly certified daily report(s) may not be recommended for payment by the Owner.
- O331.03 In preparing estimates, the material delivered on the site and preparatory work done may be taken into consideration. Where a project is under the jurisdiction of a Force Account Agreement between the Owner and the Georgia Department of Transportation, however, material delivered on the site and preparatory work done may *not* be taken into consideration.
- All material and work covered by partial payments made shall thereupon become the sole property of the Owner, but this provision shall not be construed as relieving the Contractor from the sole responsibility for the care and protection of materials and work upon which payments have been made or the restoration of any damaged work, or as a waiver of the right of the Owner to require the fulfillment of all of the terms of the contract.
- O331.05 The Contractor agrees that he will indemnify and save the Owner harmless from all claims growing out of the lawful demands of Subcontractors, laborers, workmen, mechanics, material men, and furnishers of machinery and parts thereof, equipment, power tools, and all supplies, including commissary incurred in the furtherance of the performance of this contract. The Contractor shall, at the Owner's request, furnish satisfactory evidence that all obligations of the nature hereinabove designated have been paid, discharged, or waived. If the Contractor fails to do so, then the Owner may, after having served written notice on the said Contractor, either pay unpaid bills, of which the Owner has written notice, direct, or withhold from the Contractor's unpaid compensation a sum of money deemed reasonably sufficient to pay any and all such lawful claims until satisfactory evidence is furnished that all liabilities have been fully discharged whereupon payment to the Contractor shall be resumed, in accordance with the terms of this contract, but in no event shall the provisions of this sentence be construed



to impose any obligations upon the Owner to either the Contractor or his Surety. In paying any unpaid bills of the Contractor, the Owner shall be deemed the agent of the Contractor, and any payment so made by the Owner shall be considered as a payment made under the contract by the Owner to the Contractor and the Owner shall not be liable to the Contractor for any such payments made in good faith.

0331.06 If at any time the Owner shall determine that the amount of work completed at that time is lagging behind the expired contract time by more than 20 percent, the Owner may determine that the Contractor is not faithfully performing on the contract and therefore the Owner may elect to withhold all monies and refrain from making any additional payments to the Contractor until such time as the Owner determines the work to be progressing satisfactorily.

0332 ACCEPTANCE AND FINAL PAYMENT

When the project provided for under this contract shall have been completed by the Contractor, and all parts of the work have been approved by the Owner according to the contract, the Owner shall, within ten (10) days unless otherwise provided, make final inspection and advise the Contractor as to preparing a final estimate, showing the value of work as soon as the necessary measurements and computations can be made, all prior certificates or estimates upon which payments have been being made are approximately only, and subject to correction in the final payment. The amount of the final estimates, less any sums that may have been deducted or retained under the provisions of this contract, will be paid to the Contractor within sixty (60) days after approval by the Owner, provided that the contractor has properly maintained and operated the project as specified under these specifications, and provided, that he has furnished to the Owner a sworn affidavit to the effect that all bills are paid and no suits are pending in connection with the work done or labor and material furnished under this contract. A sample affidavit appears at the end of this section to be considered as an example of an acceptable affidavit.

0333 PAYMENTS BY CONTRACTORS

The Contractor shall pay (a) for all transportation and utility services not later than the 20th day of the calendar month following that in which such services are rendered, (b) for all materials, tools, and other expendable equipment to the extent of 90 percent of the cost thereof, not later than the 20th day of the calendar month following that in which such materials, tools and equipment are delivered at the site of the project, and the balance of the cost thereof not later than the 30th day following the completion of that part of the work in or on which such materials, tools and equipment are incorporated or used, and (c) to each of his Subcontractors, not later than the 5th day following each payment to the Contractor, the respective amounts allowed the Contractor on account of the work performed

Subcontractors to the extent of each Subcontractor's interest therein.

0334 CONTRACTOR'S AND SUBCONTRACTOR'S INSURANCE

- O334.01 The Contractor shall not commence work under this Contract until he has obtained all the insurance required under this paragraph and such insurance has been reviewed by the Owner, nor shall the Contractor allow any Subcontractor to commence work on his subcontract until the insurance has been so obtained and reviewed.
 - O334.01.1 Contractor's Liability Insurance: Contractor shall purchase and maintain such comprehensive general liability and other insurance as will provide protection from claims set forth below which may arise out of or result from Contractor's performance of the work and Contractor's other obligations under the Contract Documents, whether such performance is indirectly employed by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable.
 - 0334.01.1.1 Claims under workers' or workmen's compensation, disability benefits and other similar employees benefit acts;
 - 0334.01.1.2 Claims for damages because of bodily injury, occupational sickness or disease, or death of Contractor's employees;
 - 0334.01.1.3 Claims for damages because of bodily injury, sickness or disease, or death of any person other than Contractor's employees;
 - O334.01.1.4 Claims for damages insured by personal injury liability coverage which are sustained (i) by any person as a result of an offense directly or indirectly related to the employment of such person by Contractor, or (ii) by any other person for any other reason.
 - 0334.01.1.5 Claims for damages, other than to the work itself, because of injury to or destruction of tangible property, including loss of use resulting therefrom; and
 - 0334.01.1.6 Claims for damages because of bodily injury or death of any person or property damage arising out of the Ownership, maintenance or use of any motor vehicle.

The insurance required by this paragraph shall include the specific coverages and be written for not less than the limits of liability and coverages provided in these specifications, or required by law, whichever is greater. The comprehensive general liability insurance shall include completed operations insurance. All such insurance shall contain a provision that the coverage afforded will not be



cancelled, materially changed or renewal refused until at least thirty days prior written notice has been given to Owner. All such insurance shall remain in effect until final payment and at all times thereafter when Contractor may be correcting, removing or replacing defective work. In addition, Contractor shall maintain such completed operations insurance for at least one year after final payment and furnish Owner with evidence of continuation of such insurance at final payment. Renewal certificates shall be sent to the Owner 30 days prior to the expiration date of any policy required herein.

- 0334.02 <u>Contractual Liability Insurance</u>: The comprehensive general liability insurance required will include contractual liability insurance applicable to Contractor's obligations under separate contract and subcontracting.
- 0334.03 Unless otherwise provided in these General Conditions. Contractor shall purchase and maintain property insurance upon the work at the site to the full insurable value thereof (subject to such deductible amounts as may be provided in these general conditions or required by law). This insurance shall include the interest of Owner, Contractor and Subcontractors in the work, shall provide "all risk" insurance for physical loss and damage including but not limited to fire, lightning, windstorms, hail, smoke, explosion, riot, aircraft, vehicles, falling objects, flood, earthquake, theft, vandalism, malicious mischief, collapse, water damage and other perils, and shall include damages, losses and expenses arising out of or resulting from any insured loss or incurred in the repair or replacement of any insured property (including fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys and other professionals). If not covered under the "all risk" insurance or otherwise provided in these General Conditions, Contractor shall purchase and maintain similar property insurance on portions of the work stored on and off the site or in transit when such portions of the work are to be included in an Application for Payment. The policies of insurance required to be purchased and maintained by Contractor in accordance with paragraphs c and d shall contain a provision that the coverage afforded will not be cancelled, materially changed or renewal refused until at least thirty days prior written notice has been given to the Owner.
- O334.04 Contractor shall purchase and maintain such boiler and machinery insurance as may be required by these General Conditions or by law. This insurance shall include the interest of Owners, Contractor and Subcontractors in the work and shall provide coverage for all installed and functional mechanical equipment for the full replacement value of the equipment.
- 0334.05 Owner shall not be responsible for purchasing and maintaining any property insurance to protect the interests of Contractor or Subcontractors in the

work to the extent of any deductible amounts that are provided in the supplemental conditions. If Contractor wishes property insurance coverage within the limits of such amounts, Contractor may purchase and maintain it at his own expense.

- O334.06 If Owner has any objection to the coverage afforded by or other provisions of the insurance required to be purchased and maintained by Contractor, Owner will notify Contractor thereof within ten days of the date of delivery of such certificates, to Owner. Contractor will provide to the Owner such additional information in respect of insurance provided by him as Owner may reasonably request. The right of the Owner to review and comment on Certificates of Insurance is not intended to relieve the Contractor of his responsibility to provide insurance coverage as specified nor to relieve the Contractor of his liability for any claims which might arise.
- O334.07 Partial Utilization Property Insurance: If Owner finds it necessary to occupy or use a portion or portions of the work prior to Substantial Completion of all the work, such use or occupancy may be accomplished provided that no such use or occupancy shall commence before the insurers providing the property insurance have acknowledged notice thereof and in writing effected the changes in coverage necessitated thereby. The insurers providing the property insurance shall consent by endorsement on the policy or policies, but the property insurance shall not be cancelled or lapse on account of any such partial use or occupancy.
- O334.08 The Contractor shall carry and maintain Combined Excess Liability (*Umbrella*) Insurance for a limit of not less than the following:

Each Occurrence: \$3,000,000 Aggregate: \$3,000,000

O334.09 The limits of liability for the insurance required by paragraph 334.1.1. of the General Conditions shall provide coverage for not less than the following amounts or greater where required by law:

For claims under Worker's Compensation:

State Statutory

Federal Statutory

Employer's Liability – Each Accident: \$1,000,000

Employer's Liability – Disease – Each Employee: \$1,000,000

Employer's Liability – Disease – Policy Limit: \$1,000,000

If the Contractor chooses to maintain a policy with a maximum of the state



mandated amounts of \$100,000 per accident, \$100,000 for disease per employee and a disease policy limit of \$500,000, the Contract required minimum of \$1,000,000 can be achieved by the excess liability policy required.

General Liability Provided Per Occurrence (City of Dalton, GA must be shown as an additional insured.)

Each Occurrence (Bodily and Property Damage Included): \$1,000,000

Fire Damage (Any One Fire): \$50,000 Medical Expense (Any One Person): \$5,000

Personal and Adv Injury, With Employment

Exclusion Deleted: \$1,000,000

General Aggregate (Per Project): \$2,000,000

Products and Completed Operations Aggregate: \$1,000,000

Notes: Property Damage Liability Insurance will provide explosion, collapse and underground hazard coverages where applicable. Each detonation of blasting shall be considered a single occurrence. General Liability shall include Contractual Liability as stipulated.

Comprehensive Automobile Liability:

Combined Single Limit Per Occurrence, For Any and All Autos, Including Bodily Injury and Property Damage: \$1,000,000

O334.10 Scope of Insurance and Special Hazards - The amounts stated above are minimum amounts of insurance to be carried. The Contractor shall carry such additional insurance as may be required to provide adequate protection of the Contractor and his Subcontractors, respectively, against any and all damage claims which may arise from operations under this Contract, whether such operations be by the insured or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by his and, also, against any of the special hazards which may be encountered in the performance of this Contract.

Where the scope of work involves crossing of a railway and/or railway rights-of-way, Contractor shall be required to furnish railway with a Railroad Protective Liability Insurance Policy naming railway as the named insured and issued to the Contractor with a combined single limit of \$2,000,000 for all damages arising out of bodily injury, death, property damage liability and physical damage to property liability per occurrence with an aggregate limit of \$6,000,000.



0334.11 Certificate Holder should read:

CITY OF DALTON P.O. BOX 1205 DALTON, GEORGIA 30722

O334.12 Insurance company must have an A.M. Best Rating of A-6 or higher. Insurance company must be licensed to do business by the Georgia Secretary of State. Insurance company must be authorized to do business in the State of Georgia by the Georgia Insurance Department.

0335 CONTRACT SECURITY

The Contractor shall furnish a Construction Performance Bond in an amount at least equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the contract prices as security for the faithful performance of this contract and also a Construction Payment Bond in an amount at least equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the contract price or in a penal sum not less than that prescribed by State, Territorial or local law, as security for the payment of all persons performing labor on the project under this contract and furnishing materials in connection with this contract. The performance bond and the payment bond may be in one or in separate instruments in accordance with local law.

The surety company issuing the above required Construction Performance Bond must have an A.M. Best Rating of A-6 or higher. The surety company must be licensed to do business by the Georgia Secretary of State. Insurance company must be authorized to do business in the State of Georgia by the Georgia Insurance Department.

0336 ADDITIONAL OR SUBSTITUTE BOND

If at any time the Owner for justifiable cause shall be or become dissatisfied with any Surety or Sureties, then upon the Construction Performance or Payment Bonds, the Contractor shall within five (5) days after notice from the Owner to do so, substitute an acceptable bond (or bonds) in such form and sum and signed by such other Surety or Sureties as may be satisfactory to the Owner. The premiums on such bond shall be paid by the Contractor. No further payments shall be deemed due nor shall be made until the new surety or sureties shall have furnished such an acceptable bond to the Owner.

0337 LIEN

Neither the final payment nor any part of the retained percentage will become due until the Contractor, if required, shall furnish the Owner a complete release from any liens which may arise out of this contract, or receipts in full in lieu thereof, and if required in either case, an affidavit that insofar as he has knowledge or



information, the release and receipts include all materials, for which a lien might be filed. The Contractor may, if any Subcontractor refuses to furnish a release or receipt in full, furnish a bond satisfactory to the Owner to indemnify it against any lien. If a lien shall remain unsatisfied after all payments are made, then the Contractor shall refund to the Owner all monies which the latter may be compelled to pay in discharging such lien, including all incidental costs and attorney's fees.

0338 ASSIGNMENTS

The Contractor shall not assign the whole or any part of this contract or any money due to or to become due hereunder without written consent of the Owner. In case the Contractor assigns all or part of any money due or to become due under this contract, the instrument of assignment shall contain a clause substantially to the effect that it is agreed that the right of the assigned in and to any money due or to become due to the Contractor shall be subject to prior liens of all persons, firms and corporations for services rendered or materials supplied for the performance of the work called for in this contract.

0339 MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITY OF CONTRACTORS

If through acts of neglect on the part of the Contractor, any other Contractor or subcontractor, shall suffer loss or damage on the work, the Contractor agrees to settle with such other Contractor or subcontractor by agreement or arbitration, if such other contractor or subcontractor will so settle. If such other Contractor or subcontractor shall assert any claim against the Owner on account of any damage alleged to have been so sustained, the Owner shall notify the Contractor, who shall indemnify and save harmless the Owner against any such claim.

0340 COORDINATION WITH OTHER CONTRACTORS

The Contractor shall coordinate his operations with those of other contractors. Cooperation will be required in the arrangement for the storage of materials and in the detailed execution of the work. The Contractor, including his Subcontractors shall keep informed of the progress and the detail work of other Contractors and shall notify the Owner immediately of lack of progress or defective workmanship on the part of other contractors. Failure of a Contractor to keep informed of the work progressing on the site and failure to give notice of lack of progress or defective workmanship by others shall be construed as acceptance by him of the status of the work as being satisfactory for proper coordination with his own work.

0341 SUBCONTRACTING

The Contractor shall utilize the service of specialty subcontractor on those parts of the work which, under normal contracting practices, are performed by specialty Subcontractors. Provided - that if the Owner shall determine that the specialty work in question has been customarily performed by the Contractor's own organization



and that such organization is presently competent to perform such work, the Contractor shall be permitted to do so. Provided, further - that if the Owner shall determine that the performance of any specialty work be specialty Subcontractors will result in materially increased costs or inordinate delays, the requirements of this paragraph shall not apply.

- O341.01 The Contractor shall not be allowed to award work to any subcontractor prior to written approval of the Owner, which approval will not be given until the Contractor submits to the Owner, a written statement concerning the proposed award to the subcontractor, which statement shall contain such information as the Owner may require.
- O341.02 The Contractor shall be as fully responsible to the Owner for the acts and omissions of his Subcontractors, and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by them, as he is for the acts and omissions of persons directly employed by him.
- O341.03 The Contractor shall cause appropriate provisions to be inserted in all Subcontracts relative to the work to bind subcontractors to the Contractor by the terms of the General Conditions and other contract documents insofar as applicable to the work of subcontractors and to give the Contractor the same power as regards terminating any subcontract that the Owner may exercise over the Contractor under any provision of the Contract Documents.
- 0341.04 Nothing contained in this Contract shall create any contractual relation between any Subcontractor and the Owner.

0342 USE OF PREMISES AND REMOVAL OF DEBRIS

The Contractor expressly undertakes at his own expense:

- 0342.01 To take every precaution against injuries to persons or damage to property;
- O342.02 To store his apparatus, materials, supplies and equipment in such orderly fashion at the site of the work as will not unduly interfere with the progress of his work or the work of any other Contractors;
- O342.03 To place upon the work or any part thereof only such loads as are consistent with the safety of that portion of the work.
- O342.04 To clean up frequently all refuse, rubbish, scrap materials, and debris caused by his operations, to the end that at all times the site of the work shall present a neat, orderly and workmanlike appearance;
- 0342.05 Before final payment to remove all surplus material, false work, temporary structures, including foundations thereof, plant of any description and debris



of every nature resulting from his operations, and to put the site in a neat orderly condition:

0343 QUANTITIES OF ESTIMATE

Wherever the estimated quantities of work to be done and materials to be furnished under this contract are shown in any of the documents including the proposal, they are given for use in comparing bids and the right is especially reserved except as herein otherwise specifically limited, to increase or diminish them as may be deemed reasonably necessary or desirable by the Owner to complete the work contemplated by this Contract, and such increase or diminution shall in no way vitiate this Contract, nor shall any such increase or diminution give cause for claims or liability for damages.

0344 RIGHTS-OF-WAY AND SUSPENSION OF WORK

The Owner shall furnish all land and rights-of-way necessary for the carrying out of this Contract and the completion of the work herein contemplated and will use due diligence in acquiring said land and rights-of-way as speedily as possible. But it is possible that all lands and rights-of-way may not be obtained as herein contemplated before construction begins, in which event the Contractor shall begin his work upon such land and rights-of-way as the Owner may have previously acquired, and no claim for damages whatsoever will be allowed by reason of the delay in obtaining the remaining lands and rights-of-way. Should the Owner be prevented or enjoined from proceeding with the work, or from authorizing its prosecution, either before or after the commencement, by reason of any litigation, or by reason of its inability to procure any lands or rights-of-way for the said work, the Contractor shall not be entitled to make or assert claim for damage by reason of said delay, or, to withdraw from the contract except by consent of the Owner, but time for completion of the work will be extended to such time as the Owner determines will compensate for the time lost by such delay, such determination to be set forth in writing.

0345 GUARANTY

- O345.01 All work constructed under this contract shall be fully guaranteed by the Contractor for a period of one year from the date of final inspection and acceptance by the Owner. This guarantee shall cover any and all defects in workmanship or materials that may develop in this specified time, and any failure in such workmanship or materials shall be repaired or replaced to the satisfaction of the Owner by the Contractor at his own expense.
- 0345.02 Neither the final certificate of payment nor any provision in the contract documents nor partial or entire occupancy of the premises by the Owner shall constitute an acceptance of work not done in accordance with the contract documents or relieve the Contractor of liability in respect to any



express warranties or responsibility for faulty materials or workmanship.

0346 CONFLICTING CONDITIONS

Any provisions in any of the contract documents which may be in conflict or inconsistent with any of the paragraphs in these General Conditions shall be void to the extent of such conflict or inconsistency.

0347 NOTICE AND SERVICE THEREOF

Any notice to any Contractor from the Owner relative to any part of this contract shall be in writing and considered delivered and the service thereof completed, when said notice is posted, by certified or registered mail or email, to the said Contractor at his last given address, or delivered in person to the said Contractor or his authorized representative on the work.

0348 PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY LAW DEEMED INSERTED

Each and every provision of law and clause required by law to be inserted in this contract shall be deemed to be inserted herein and the Contract shall be read and enforced as though it were included herein, and if through mistake or otherwise any such provision is not inserted, or is not correctly inserted, then upon the application of either party the contract shall forthwith be physically amended to make such insertion or correction.

0349 SUSPENSION OF WORK

Should the Owner be prevented or enjoined from proceeding with work either before or after the start of construction by reason of any litigation or other reason beyond the control of the Owner, the Contractor shall not be entitled to make or assert claim for damage by reason of said delay; but time for completion of the work will be extended to such reasonable time as the Owner may determine will compensate for time lost by such delay with such determination to be set forth in writing.

0350 PROTECTION AND RESTORATION OF PROPERTY

O350.01 The Contractor shall not enter upon private property for any purpose without first obtaining permission, and he shall use every precaution necessary to prevent damage or injury to any public or private property, trees, fences, monuments, underground structures, etc., on and adjacent to the site of the work. He shall protect carefully, from disturbance or damage, all land monuments and property marks until an authorized agent has witnessed or otherwise referenced their location, and shall not remove them until directed.



- 0350.02 Except as specifically provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall not do any work that would affect any railway track, pipeline, telephone, telegraph, or electric or transmission line, or other structure nor enter upon the right-of-way or other lands appurtenant thereto, until authority therefore has been secured from the proper parties. The Contractor shall not be entitled to any extension of time or any extra compensation on account of any postponement, interference, or delay resulting from his requirement, except as specifically provided in the contract.
- O350.03 The Contractor shall be responsible for all damage or injury to property of any character resulting from any act, omission, neglect, or misconduct in his manner or method of executing said work, or due to his nonexecution of said work, or at any time due to defective work or materials, and he shall not be released from said responsibility until the work shall have been completed and accepted.
- 0350.04 When or where any direct or indirect damage or injury is done to public or private property by, or on account of any act, omission, neglect, or misconduct in the execution of the work, or in consequence of the non-execution thereof on the part of the Contractor, he shall restore at his own expense, such property to a condition similar or equal to that existing before such damage or injury was done, by repairing, rebuilding, or otherwise restoring, as may be directed, or he shall make good such damage or injury in an acceptable manner.

0351 RESPONSIBILITY FOR DAMAGE CLAIMS

The Contractor shall be responsible for all injury or damage of any kind resulting from his work, to persons or property. The Contractor hereby assumes the obligation to indemnify and save harmless the Owner including associates, agents and representatives, from every expense, liability, or payment arising out of or through injury to any person or persons including death and loss of services, or damage to property, regardless of who may be the Owner of the property, suffered through any cause whatsoever in the construction work involved in the contract and to defend on their behalf any suit brought against them arising from any such cause.

0352 INTEREST OF FEDERAL, STATE OR LOCAL OFFICIALS

No Federal, State or Local official shall be admitted to any share or part of this contract or to any benefit that may arise therefrom, but this provision shall not be construed to extend to this contract if made with a corporation for its general benefit.



0353 OTHER PROHIBITED INTERESTS

No official of the Owner who is authorized in such capacity and on behalf of the Owner to negotiate, make, accept or approve or to take part in negotiating, making, accepting, or approving any architectural, engineering, inspection, construction or material supply contract or any subcontract in connection with the construction of the project, shall become directly or indirectly interested personally in this contract or in any part hereof. No officer, employee, architect, attorney, engineer or inspector of or for the Owner who is authorized in such capacity and on behalf of the Owner to exercise any legislative, executive, supervisory of other similar functions in connection with the construction of the project, shall become directly or indirectly interested personally in this contract or in any part thereof, any material supply contract, subcontract, insurance contract, or any other contract pertaining to the project.

0354 USE OF CHEMICALS

All chemicals used during project construction or furnished for project operation, whether herbicide, pesticide, disinfectant, polymer, reactant or of other classification, must show approval of either E.P.A., or U.S.D.A. Use of all such chemicals and disposal of residues shall be in strict conformance with instructions.

0355 MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC

O355.01 The Contractor shall notify the Owner and the appropriate department of transportation prior to performing any work which disrupts normal flow of traffic, and shall utilize appropriate warning signs, flagmen and other procedures necessary to ensure safety and minimize inconvenience to the public.

0356 ACCEPTANCE OF FINAL PAYMENT CONSTITUTES RELEASE

The acceptance by the Contractor of final payment shall be and shall operate as a release to the Owner of all claims and all liability to the Contractor for all things done or furnished in connection with this work and for every act and neglect of the Owner and others relating to or arising out of this work. No payment, however, final or otherwise, shall operate to release the Contractor or his sureties from any obligations under this contract or the Construction Performance and Payment Bond.

0357 OWNER'S RIGHT TO SUSPEND WORK

The Owner shall have the authority to suspend the work, wholly or in part as he may deem necessary because of conditions unsuitable for proper prosecution of the work or failure on the part of the Contractor to carry out the provisions or to meet the specified requirements. The Contractor shall not suspend operations



without the Owner's permission.

0358 TIME FOR COMPLETION AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

- 0358.01 It is hereby understood and mutually agreed, by and between the Contractor and the Owner, that the date of beginning and the time for completion as specified in the contract of the work to be done hereunder are ESSENTIAL CONDITIONS of this contract; and it is further mutually understood and agreed that the work embraced in this contract shall be commenced on a date to be specified in the "NOTICE TO PROCEED."
- O358.02 The Contractor agrees that said work shall be prosecuted regularly, diligently, and uninterruptedly at such rate of progress as will insure full completion thereof within the time specified. It is expressly understood and agreed, by and between the Contractor and the Owner, that the time for the completion of the work described herein is a reasonable time for the completion of the same, taking into consideration the average climatic range and usual industrial conditions prevailing in this locality.
- 0358.03 If the said Contractor shall neglect, fail or refuse to complete the work within the time herein specified, or any proper extension thereof granted by the Owner, then the Contractor does hereby agree, as a part consideration for the awarding of this contract, to pay to the Owner the amount specified in the contract, not as a penalty but as liquidated damages for such breach of contract as hereinafter set forth, for each and every calendar day that the Contractor shall be in default after the time stipulated in the contract for completing the work.
- O358.04 The said amount is fixed and agreed upon by and between the Contractor and the Owner because of the impracticability and extreme difficulty of fixing and ascertaining the actual damages the Owner would in such event sustain, and said amount is agreed to be the amount of damages which the Owner would sustain and said amount shall be retained from time to time by the Owner from current periodical estimates.
- O358.05 It is further agreed that time is of the essence of each and every portion of this contract and of the specifications wherein a definite and certain length of time is fixed for the performance of any act whatsoever; and where, under the contract, an additional time is allowed for the completion of any work, the new time limit fixed by such extension shall be of the essence of this contract. Provided, that the Contractor shall not be charged with liquidated damages or any excess cost when the Owner determines that the Contractor is without fault and the Contractor's reasons for the time extension are acceptable to the Owner; provided, further, that the Contractor shall not be charged with liquidated damages or any excess cost when the delay in completion of the work is due:



- 0358.05.1 To any preference, priority or allocation order duly issued by the Government;
- O358.05.2 To unforeseeable cause beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Contractor, including but not restricted to, acts of God, or of the public enemy, acts of the Owner, acts of another contractor in the performance of a contract with the Owner, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes, and severe weather
- O358.06 Provided, further, that the Contractor shall, within ten (10) days from the beginning of such delay, unless the Owner shall grant a further period of time prior to the date of final settlement of the contract, notify the Owner, in writing, of the causes of the delay, who shall ascertain the facts and extent of the delay, and notify the Contractor within a reasonable time of its decision in this matter.

END OF SECTION



AFFIDAVIT FOR FINAL PAYMENT AND RELEASE OF LIENS

STATE OF:	<u></u>
COUNTY OF:	
FROM:	(Contractor)
TO: <u>CITY OF DALTON, GEORGIA</u>	(Owner)
RE: Contract entered into the day parties for the construction of the pro PROJECT.	of, between the above mentioned bject entitled PRATER ALLEY STORMWATER DETENTION
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:	:
in accordance with the terms thereof, the have been paid and satisfied in full and	Il work required under the above Contract has been performed nat all material-men, sub-contractors, mechanics, and laborers I that there are not outstanding claims of any character arising which have been paid and satisfied in full.
unsatisfied claims for damages resulting the public at large arising out of the pe	t to the best of their knowledge and belief there are not ng from injury or death to any employees, sub-contractors, or rformance of the Contract or any suits or claims for any other tion on which might constitute a lien upon the property of the
	avit as provided by the Contract and agrees that acceptance ettlement of all claims against the Owner arising under or by
4. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersign of	gned has signed and sealed this instrument this day
	SIGNED:(SEAL)
	BY:
	TITLE:
Personally appeared before the undersigned who after being duly sworn, deposes and says that the facts stated in the above affidavit are true.	
This,	
Notary Public:SEAL	
My Commission Expires:,	
County,	

SECTION 0400 - GENERAL NOTES

- 1. THE DATA, TOGETHER WITH ALL OTHER INFORMATION SHOWN ON THESE PLANS/BID PACKAGE, OR IN ANY WAY INDICATED THEREBY, WHETHER BY DRAWINGS OR NOTES, OR IN ANY OTHER MANNER, ARE BASED UPON FIELD INVESTIGATIONS AND ARE BELIEVED TO BE INDICATIVE OF ACTUAL CONDITIONS. HOWEVER, THE SAME ARE SHOWN AS INFORMATION ONLY, ARE NOT GUARANTEED AND DO NOT BIND THE CITY OF DALTON IN ANY WAY. THE ATTENTION OF THE BIDDER IS SPECIFICALLY DIRECTED TO GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION SPECIFICATION SECTIONS 102.04, 102.05, AND 104.03 OF THE SPECIFICATIONS.
- 2. ALL WORK ASSOCIATED WITH THIS CONTRACT SHALL BE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MOST CURRENT GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS, SPECIAL PROVISIONS, CONSTRUCTION DETAILS, AND THE **ARCADIS U.S., INC. PLANS INCLUDED AS EXHIBIT A.**
- 3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE POSITIVE DRAINAGE (WHERE APPLICABLE) SUCH THAT WATER DOES NOT POND ON FINISHED SURFACES.
- 4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR MAINTAINING ALL DRAINAGE STRUCTURES WITHIN THE LIMITS OF THE PROJECT THROUGHOUT THE DURATION OF THE PROJECT. ANY DEBRIS THAT GOES INTO DRAINAGE STRUCTURES SHALL BE CLEANED OUT BY THE CONTRACTOR AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE CITY.
- 5. TRAFFIC CONTROL SHALL BE PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PART 6 OF THE 2009 MANUAL OF UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES FOR STREETS AND HIGHWAYS. A CERTIFIED FLAGGER WILL BE REQUIRED FOR THIS PROJECT.
- THE CONTRACTOR WILL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR COORDINATING WITH DALTON UTILITIES AND OTHER UTILITY AGENCIES FOR THE COORDINATION AND ADJUSTMENTS (IF APPLICABLE) OF ALL UTILITIES LOCATED WITHIN THE PROJECT LIMITS.
- 7. CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO CALL GA 811 OR FILE ONLINE A UTILITY LOCATE REQUEST PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK AND MAINTAIN ACTIVE LOCATE FOR THE DURATION OF THE PROJECT.
- 8. TIME OF WORK RESTRICTIONS NO WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED BETWEEN THE HOURS OF 5:30 PM AND 7:00 AM ON MONDAYS, AND BETWEEN THE HOURS OF 7:00 PM AND 7:00 AM TUESDAY THROUGH FRIDAY. DAMAGES FOR



- FAILURE TO OBSERVE TIME OF WORK RESTRICTIONS SHALL BE ASSESSED TO THE CONTRACTOR AT THE RATE OF \$200 PER HOUR.
- COORDINATION OF PROJECT WITH OWNERS CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTINUOUSLY MAKE A GOOD FAITH EFFORT TO COORDINATE WORK ACTIVITIES WITH THE ADJACENT PROPERTY OWNERS AFFECTED BY THE PROJECT.
- 10. NOTE: GRASSING COMPLETE SHALL INCLUDE STRAW, SLOPE MIX SEED, PERMANENT SEED MIX, FERTILIZER, OR SOD AS SPECIFIED.
- 11. CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO FURNISH THE CITY AN AS-BUILT SURVEY OF THE IMPROVEMENTS FROM A LICENSED SURVEYOR UPON COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT. NO SEPARATE PAYMENT WILL BE MADE FOR THIS SURVEY AND THE EXPENSE SHOULD BE INCLUDED IN GRADING COMPLETE.
- 12. EARTHWORK AND EXCAVATION (INCLUDING EARTHWORK SPOILS MATERIAL HAUL-OFF AND DEWATERING OF EXCAVATION, IF NEEDED) SHALL BE INCLUDED IN GRADING COMPLETE.
- 13.AN NOI IS NOT REQUIRED FOR THIS PROJECT. A GSWCC CERTIFIED PERSONNEL BLUE CARD HOLDER MUST BE PRESENT ON SITE AT ALL TIMES TO REPRESENT THE CONTRACTOR. A LOCAL LAND DISTURBANCE PERMIT IS REQUIRED TO BE FILED THROUGH WHITFIELD COUNTY. PLEASE CONTACT CHRIS HESTER, THE WHITFIELD COUNTY STORMWATER COORDINATOR, FOR INFORMATION REGARDING OBTAINING A LOCAL LAND DSITURBANCE PERMIT AT 706-281-1768.
- 14. RIGHT OF WAY/EASEMENTS: THERE ARE NO EASEMENTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE PROJECT, GIVEN THAT THE PROJECT IS LOCATED ON CITY-OWNED PROPERTY, AND THE CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE IS LOCATED ON CITY-OWNED RIGHT-OF-WAY.

